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PROCEEDINGS

THE COURT: Madam Clerk.

(WHEREUPON, Mr. Makupson was placed under oath at this
time.) ‘

THE COURT: sir, you're Mr. Jamie Anthony Makupson?

MR. MAKUPSON: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Mr. Makupson, have you had a chénce to look
at this 1106 report?

MR. MAKUPSON: No, sir.

THE COURT: You haven't seen th1s7

MR. MAKUPSON: No, sir. , N

THE COURT: You don't know what they're say1ng that you
did or didn't do?

MR. MAKUPSON: No, sir, I just——-

THE COURT: Agent?

THE PROBATION AGENT: Your Honor, he was presented with
a copy of the citation at -- when he was in my office and
then subsequently escorted out because he became so
belligerent while standing there trying to explain the
citation. He did come into my office on Tuesday. We didn't
have an appointment. He said he was there simply because he
was there, there for Court. Said he didn't get an attorney
cause he didn't feel like it and would be representing
himself.
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Mr. Makupson is aware of the violations as he screamed
them to me while we were waiting for you to come out to the
bench.

THE COURT: Oh.

sir, they're saying that you missed, missed a report
in December.

MR. MAKUPSON: No. No, sir, that's not true.

THE COURT: Okay. |

MR. MAKUPSON: 1It's wrote down.that I went to every,
every report I suppose to went to. |

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. MAKUPSON: Every last one of them.

THE COURT: Wwhat ébout changing your address without
consent?

MR. MAKUPSON: Never. My address still the same and

she called my mother right after I left and told my mother

she wasn't gonna violate me because my mother told her that
I was just leaving the house to come up there to see her.
THE COURT:  All right. what about testing positive
for cocaine or--- '
MR. MAKUPSON: Your Honhor?
THE COURT: Sir? ,
MR. MAKUPSON: Under the, under the guidelines, I don't
have a drug charge. I wasn't recommended to do drug tests
on my sentencing sheet. It wasn't recommended that I do
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drug tests on my sentence, and when I asked for a second one
because I thought that the stick was wrong, they denied me a.
second one. |

I'm entitled to two drug tests at the same time, right?

THE COURT: sir,Athey say you tested positive on March
gth and march 15th with THC, cocaine, and---

MR. MAKUPSON: I, I only been tested once. Once when I
first started and once in March. And when I asked for the
second stick, you entitled to a second stick, Your Honor,
if, if the one -- if you fee] 1ike the one stick is wrong,
you're ent1t1ed to ask for another urine test to do. it
again. They denied me that.

THE COURT: Okay. well, the COurt finds that you -
violated your probation, your probation by testing positive,
by missing reports, and by changing your address---

MR. MAKUPSON: How---

THE COURT: ---without consent.

MR. MAKUPSON: How is that so, sir?

THE COURT: He's revoked in full.

THE PROBATION AGENT: Thank you, sir.

MR. MAKUPSON: And what is full, sir?

what is the sentence?

what's my sentence?

THE PROBATION AGENT: Five years.

MR. MAKUPSON: Five years.
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ]
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) IN THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
)
Jamie A. Makupson, #281398, ) CaseNo.: 2017-CP-42-1808
' Applicant, )
)
V. ) RETURN AND MOTION TO DISMISS
)
State of South Carolina, )
Respondent. )
)

Respondent, making its Return to the Applicatioh for Post-Conviction Relief ("PCR") filed

on May 22, 2017, would_x;espectfully.shdw this Court:
| L

Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corre_b,t’i_qns pursuantto
orders of comminﬂent of the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court. In May 2013, the Spartanburg
County Grand Jury in,dict'_e‘d ,Ap_pliéant for assault and battery, first degree (2013-GS-42-2321).
Applicant was subsequently indicted in June 2013 for assault and bingry,.sccqnd degree (2013-GS-
42-2919)and thregtenir_;g,life, pérson,.cr‘férnily of public oﬁicial_, teacher, or prmcxpal (2013-GS-42-
2920). ! | |

Robert B. Hall, Esquire, represented Apﬁliqant. Alexandria Denise Lyles, _E_%qu_im,-prosecuted
“ the case. On June 28, 2_()113, Applicant pleaded guilty as indicted to ;ll charges bcfox;e' the ‘Honoréble
J. Mark Hayes, II. Pursuant to a negotia_ted sentence, Judge Hayes sentenc;ed Applicant to
imprisonment for concurrent terms of ten years for assault and battery, first degree, provided that
upon the service of five years, the balance was suspended with probation for five years, three years
for assault and battery, second degree, and five years for threatening the life, person or family of

public official, teacher, or principal. Applicant did not appeal his conviction or sentence.
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On April 4, 2016 a probation citation was issued for Applicant for violations of probation.
The affidavit stated that Applicant was to be arrested for the following reasons:

1. Failure to report as instructed having missed an office visit;
2. Failure to refrain from changing residence without prior consent of the Agent;
3. Failure to refrain from the use of controlled substances having tested positive for THC,
cocaine, and opiates on 3/8/16 and 3/15/16;
4, Failure to work diligently at a lawful occupation, having never provided the Agent with proof
of employment, or proof of any effort to obtain employment;
5. Failure to pay supervision fee being $600 in arrears and having never made a payment on this
account since beginning probation; '
6. Failure to pay court fine being $180 in arrears and having never made a payment on this
account since beginning probation;
Failure to pay one time $20 drug test fee;
Failure to follow the advice and instructions of the supervising Agent;
' Failure to comply with special condition of anger management counseling.

Rl

On June 17, 2016, the Applicant appeared: before the Honorable R. Keith Kelly for a

probation révocation hearing. Judge Kelly revoked Applicant’s probation and required him to serve
. H <
his remaining five year sentence. Applicant did not appeal his sentence.

1L
In his application for post-conviction relief, Applicant alleges that he is being held in custody
unlawfully for the following reasons:

1. “Did the Court of General Sessions have subject matter jurisdiction to revoke Applicant’s
probation?” .

a. “According to the revocation order it states thata citation dated 4-4-16 was issued. It
also state that, ‘after hearing the evidence and being duly advised, in the presence of
the defendant (now Applicant), I find the above named defendant has violated the
following conditions of probation, ... This statement would have us believe that
citation with an affidavit was issued in this case, when in fact, there was no citation
or affidavit issued before hearing or served nor presented to the Applicant in this
case. Applicant has néver seen a citation nor warrant up to this date. Without the
citation or probation warrant rendered this court is without subject matter jurisdiction
and the revocation is void.”

2. “Did Applicant waive his right to counsel at the probation revocation hearing?”

a. “In this case, Applicant had to proceed pro se as no counsel was appointed to

represent nor were the required procedures or steps taken by the court to assure that

Applicant was making a free and voluntary waiver of his right to counsel and thathe
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understood the dangers of self-representation.”

Attached to this Return and incorporated by reference are the records of the Spartanburg
County Clerk of Court regardiﬁg the subject convictions, Applicant's records from the South
Carolina Department of Corrections, Applicant’s probation revocation transcript, Applicant's
probation records, and the application. Respondent reserves the right to amend this Return upon
rccéipt of any relevant materials.

ML

Any claims stemming from Applicant’s guilty plea hearing should be summarily dismissed
for failure to comply with the filing procedures of the Uniform Post-Conviction Procedure Act. S.C.
Code Ann. § 17-27-10 to -160. Specifically, the act requires as follows:

An application for relief filed pursuant to this chapter must be filed within one year

after the entty of a judgment of conviction or within one year after the sending of the

remittitur to the lower court from an appeal or the filing of the final decision on

appeal, whichever is later.
S8.C. Code Annv.'§ 17-27-45(a).

The South Carolina Supreme Court has held that the 'statute of limitations shall apply to all
app'licati(;ns filed after July 1, 1996. Peloquin v. State, 321 S.C. 468, 469 S,E;Zd 606 '(1996). A
motion for summary judgment may properly be used o raise the defense of statute __of limitations.
McDonnell VA Cons_olidatedv School District of Aiken, 315 S'.C". 487, 445 S.E.2d 638 (1994). In
addition, S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-70(c) authorizes the Cou'rt. to “grant a motipn by either party for
sﬁmmary disposition of [an] application when it appears from the pleadings ... that there is no
genuine issue of material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment.as a matter of law.”

Applicént pled guilty on June 26, 2013, Therefore, any claims st:xmning from his guilty plea

were due Thursday, June 26, 2014. The current application was filed May 22,2017 - well after the
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one-year statutory filing period expired. Therefore; any claims stemming from Applicant’s guilty
plea hearing should be summarily dismissed as barred by the statute of limitations.
V.
Applicant’s allegation of lack of subject-matter jurisdiction sh_éuld be dismissed as
Respondent is entitled to judgment as a matier of law. An Applicant may challenge the subject

matter jurisdiction of the trial court and such a claim is one that may be raised at any time. See

Brown v. State, 343 S.C. 342, 540 S.E.2d 846 (2001), overruled in part by Gentry, 363 8.C. 93,610
S.E.2d 494 (2005); However, ‘;[é]ircuit courts obviously have subject matter jurisdiction to try
criminal matters.” Gentry, 363 S.C. 93; See also S.C. Const. Art. V, § 7. Thus, Applicant must
present evidence that his case is of some class over which the circuit court daes not have the
authority to preside. Applicant claims that there was no citation or aﬁ-‘xdavit issu_ed regg_rd_ing his
arrest for proba’non violations. The record clearly indicates that there was a probation citation with an
affidavit signed by Applicant’s probation officer, Hanna Price, on Apnl 4, 2016 and served on April
13, 2016. Therefore, Applicant has failed to present any evidence to refute the record that he was
served with the probation ei‘ta’_i_;ior; and affidavit in addition to failing to show ihat- the probation
revocation court did not have the authority to preside. Therefore, the Respondent requests that this
allegation be summarily dismissed as there is no genuine issue of material fact and Respondent is
entitled to judgment as a matter of law.
V.

Applicant alleges that he was denied the right to have counsel appointed during his probation
hearing and the court failed to explain to him the disadvantages of proceeding pro se, thus denying
him the right to an appeal. In criminal cases, defendants have the right to waive counsel; however,

the trial court has discretion to determine if that waiver was knowing and intelligent waiver. State
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v. Bryant, 383 S.C. 410,414, 680 8.E.2d 11, 13 (2009) (citing State v. Thompson, 355 S.C. 261-62,
584 S.B.ZdI at 134-35 (2003)). Specifically, in addition to reviewi.ng the entire record, the court also
looks to ten factors in order to determine if the defendant has sufﬁciént background to understand the
dangefs of self-representation. Bryant, 383 S.C. 410, 415, 680 S.E.2d 11, 13 (2009). Such factors
include, but not limited to, whether the defendant was previously involved in criminal trials, whether
he knew the nature of the charge and of the possible penalties, and whether he knew he would be
required to comply with trial rules of procedure. Id. This analysis aids the court in determining
whether the defendant had sufficient background to waive counsel or was apprised of iais rights by
another source. Id.

In régard to waiving counsel in a probation revocation hearing, the court first looks to the
exchange between the court and the probation agent during the hearing. Id. at 416,680 S.E.2d at 14.
If the court does not explicitly addreé_s the specific dangers and disadvantages of proceeding pro se as
required by Ferretta', the Court notes that the next inquiry is whethér the defendant signed a
probation notice by his probation officer, acknowledging in part that he may have an attorney
repres_eni him and if he could not afford one, one v;I_ould be appointed on his behalf, Bryant, 383 8.C.
at 410, 416-17, 680 S,E:2d 11, 14. The probation'notic.e typically states that 1t is the d_efendant‘s
responsibility to ensure that his or her witnesses-and attorney-appear at the hearing, Id. In _B_g@n_g, the
court held that though the court did not explicitly wamn the defendaﬂt, of the dangers and
disadvantages of self-representation, bécause the defendant signied a probatibnj,_potice prior to the
hearing informing her of her rights and considering her extensive experien{:e_;in» fhe criminal justice

system, specifically in probation court, as well as previous representation for thé, underlying charges,

1 Faretta v, Califbi;nig, 422 U.S. 806, 95 S. Ct. 2525 (1975)
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she had a sufficient background to waive counsel and was apprised of her rights by some other
source. Id at 417, 680 S.E.2d at.14. |
In the case at bar, Applicaht signed a notice of probation, informing‘ him of his rights, on
April 13,2016, This notice expressly stated that he may have an attomey represent him, and that if
he could not afford one, one would be appointed for him. Therefore, the responsibility fell on
Applicant to make arrangements to hire an attorney to appear at the probation revocation hearing, if
desifed, as acknowledged in the signed probation notice. Because Applicant was apprised of his
rights by his probation agent through the signed probation notice and he was fémiliar Qith the
criminal justice system as evidenced by his conviction for the crime for which he was sentenced to
prqbation, Applicant possessed sufficient background to waive his right to counsel and was apprised
of his rights through his probation agent.
- Respondent moves for summary dismissal of all allegations stemming' from Applicant’s
claim of denial of appointed representation as they are conclusively refuted by the record and
therefore, there is no genuine issue of material fact aﬁd the moving party is entitled to judgmentasa

matter of law.
VL

Each and every allegation contained within the application not ex;)ressly admitted, qualified,

or explained in this Return is hereby denied.

6of 7
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VIL
WHEREFORE, Respondent moves to summarily dismiss the application because any
claims related to Applicant’s guilty plea hearing were filed after the statute of limitations had

expired, the record conclusively refutes the allegation that the probation revocation court lacked

subject matter jurisdictionand that Applicant was denied counsel at his probation revocation hearing.

Respectfully submitied,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

W. JEFFERY YOUNG
Chief Deputy Atforney General

MEGAN HARRIGAN JAMESON
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

VALERIE GARCIA GIOVANOLI )

Assmtmj\ 3;Qmmey eneral ‘
WA

ATTORNEYS FOR RLSPONDENT

Office of the Attorney General
Post Office Box 11349
Columbia, SC 29211
Telephone: (803) 734-3737 .

December 7, 2017
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) '
)
) 2017-CP-42-1808
JAMIE ANTHONY MAKUPSON, )
#281398, )
)
Applicant, )
)
V8 ) AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
| . )
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
)
Respondent. )
' )
1. 1 am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.
2, Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and that this

is a proper circumstance of service by mail.
3. 1 have this day served acopy of the Return -and Motion to Dismiss in the above-captioned
matter on thie following person by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid:
: {
Susannah C. Ross, Esquire
Ross & Enderlin, PA

330 East Coffee Stircet
Greenville, South Carelina 29601

DATED this the 7% day of Deceinber, 2017.

Lindscy McCoy, begdl Assistant
For Respondent
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF CO} '
_ TH CAROL I F COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) IN THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
)
. v )
Jamie A, Makupson, #281398, ) Case No.: 2017-CP-42-1808
Applicant, )
) 2
V. 3 CONDITIONAL ORDEROEE. = -3
) ) DISMISSAL = %
Statc of South Carolina, ) 5 =
Respondent. ) l;-‘ °
) £ =

-~ .

n I

1l ; =¥
This matter comes before the Court by way of an application for post-convitfjon %ief*

filed by Jumie A. Makupson (Applicant) on May 22, 2017. Respondent made i-t: Rctcu,m,
requesting the application be summarily dismissed.
PROCEDURAL HISTORY
Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant
to orders of commitment of the Spartanbuté County Clerk of Court. In May 2013, the
Spartanburg County Grand Jury indicted Applican fqr assault and battery, first degree (2013-
G8-42-2321). Applicant was subsequently indicted in June 2013 for assauit and battery, second
degree (2013-GS-42-2919) and threatening Iifg, person, or family of publi¢ official, teacher, or
principal (2013-GS-42-2920).

Robert B. Hall, Esquire, represenfed Applicant. Alexandria Denise Lyles, Esquirc,
prosecuted the case. On June 28, 2013, Applicant pleaded guilty as indicted to all charge$ before
the Honorable J, Mark Hayeés, IL. Pursuant to a negotated sentence, Judge Hayes sentenced
Applicant to imprisonment for concurrent terms of ten years for assault and battery, first degree,

provided that upon the service of five years, the balance was suspended with probation for five
years, three years for assault and battery, second degree, and five years for threatening'the life,

person or-family of public official, teacher, or principal. Applicant did not appeal his conviction
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or sentence.

On April 4, 2016 an probation citation was issued for Applicant for violations of

probation. The affidavit staied that Applicant was to be arrested for the following reasons:

1
2,
3

0 oo

. Failure to report as instriscted having missed an office visit,

Failure to refrain from changing residence without prior consent of the Agent;

Failire to reffain from the use of controlled substances having tested positive for THC,
cocaine, and opiates-on 3/8/16 and 3/15/16;

Failure to work diligently at a lawful occupation, having never provided the Agent with
proof of employment, of proof of afy effort 1o obtain employment; )

Failure to pay supervision fee being $600 in arrears and having never made a payment on
this account since beginning probation;

' Failure to pay court fine being $180 in arrears and having never made a payment on this

account since beginning probation;

Failure to pay one time $20 drug test fee;

Failure to follow the advite and instructions of the supervising Agent;
Failure to comply with special condition of anger management counseling.

On June 17, 2016, the Applicant appeared before the Honorable R. Keith Kelly for a

probation revocation hearing. Judge Kelly revoked Applicant’s probation and required him to

serve his remaining five year sentence. Applicant did not appeal his sentence.

in custody unlawfully for the following reasons: ' I

L

2

i

.
P

=
o
.
L«
I

CURRENT APPLICATION

5

In his application for post-conviction relief, Applicant alleges that }ﬁts bémg held

2
P
o

¥

T

“Did the Court of General Sessions have subject matter jusisdiction to revoke &pplicant’s
probation? :

& “According to the revocation order it states that a citation dated 4-4-16 was
issued. It also state that, ‘after hearing the evidence and being. duly advised, in the
presence of the defendant (now Applicant), 1 find the above niamed defendant has
violated the following conditions of probation. ... This statemént would have us
believe that citation with an affidavit was issued in this case, whea in fact, there
was no citation or affidavit issued before hearing or served nor presented to the
Applicant.in this case. Applicanf has never seen a citation nor-warrant yp to. this

. ddte; Without the citation or probation warrant rendered this ‘court is without
subject matter jurisdiction and the revocation is void.”
“Did Applicant waive his right to counsel at the probation revocation- hearing?” _

a. “In this case, Applicant bad to proceed pro se as no counsel was appointed to
represent nor were the required procedures or steps taken by the court to assure

o
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that Applicant was making a fre¢ and voluntary waiver of his right to counsel and
that he understood the dangers of seif-representation.”
Before this Court are the records of the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court regarding the
subject convictions, Applicant's records from the South Carolina Department of Corrections, the

probation revocation transcript, Applicant's probation records, the application and Responderits

!

return and motion fo dismiss.
NDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
Statute of Limitations

FI
This Court finds that any claims stemming from Applicant’s guilty plez hearing should

be summarily dismissed for failure to comply with the filing procedures of the Uniform Post-

Conviction Procedure Act. S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-10 to ~160. Specifically, the act requires as

A

&
)
“U

follows:
sending of the remitsitur to the lower court from an appeal or the filing of the final

i{-}

decision on appeal, whichever is later.
8.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-45(a).
The South Carolina Supreme Court has held that the statutc of limitationgfgj;all é:piy..lév_
all applications filed after July 1, 1996. Peloquin v. State, 321 S.C. 468, 469 SI;?;Q:! 6@ (1996).
A motion for summary judgment may properly be used to raise the defeng‘é cétiamte of
fimitations, McDonnell v. Consolidated School District of Aiken, 315 $.C. 487, 445 S.E.2d 638
(1994). In addition, S.C, Code Ann. § 17-27-10(c) authorizes the Court to *grant a motion by
gither party fo_f‘ summary dispdsition of [an] application when it ai)gears from the ple_a'dihgs
. : |

that there is no genuine issue of material fact and the moving party is entitled to judgment as 2

An application for relief filed pursuant to this chapter must be filed within one
'year afler the entry of a judgment of conviction or within one year after the

a Do

&~ x5

o

=

f7

matter of faw.”
Applicant pled guilty on June 26, 2013. Therefore, any claims stemming from his guilty
"38e
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plea were due Thursday, June 26, 2014. The current application was filed May 22, 2017 - well
after the one-year statutory filing period expired. T!;crctbre, any claims stemming from
Applicant’s guilty plea heating are summarily dismissed as barred by the statute of limitations,
Subject Matter Jurisdiction
The Couri further finds Applicant’s s first allegation of lack of subject matter jurisdiction

must be summarily disthissed because Respondent is-entitled to judgment as a matter of law. An

Applicant may challenge the subject matter jurisdiction of the trial court and such a claim is one

that may be raised at any time. Sce Brown v. State, 343 S.C. 342, 540 S.E2d 846 (2001),
pvem_ﬂed in part by Gentry, 363 S.C. 93, 610 5.E.2d 494 (2005). However, “{c]ircuit courts
ébviousfy- have subject matter jurisdiction to try criminal matters.” Gentry, 363 8.C. 93; See also
8.C. Const. Art. V, § 7. Thus, Applicant must present evidence that his case-is of somie class over
which the circuit court does not have the authority to p'regide. Applicant claims that there was no

citation or affidavit issued. regarding his arrest. for probation violations. The record clearly

indicates that thére was a probation citation with an afﬁdavu szgned by Apphcant s\pm@on: .

officer, Hanna Pnce, on April 4, 2016 and served on April 13, 2016. Therefore, A#phc@ has -

cx oy

S S
failed to present any evidence 10 refiite the record that he was sérved with the probatxon cuanor; )

and afﬁdav it in eddition to failing to show that the probation revocation court "55" noltbave the
authority to preside. Thereforg, this Count finds that this allegation be summarily d;s_'r\rjgxssed as
there is no genuine issue of ‘material fact and Respondent is entitled to judgment as a matter o’f"
law:

Riglit to Probation Revocation Counsel

Applicant allegg,é_ that he was denied the right t6 have co'unsel- appointed during his

probation hearing and the court failed to explain to him the disadvantages of proceeding pro se,

ag€ 4 0f 7
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thus denying him the right to an appeal, In criminal cases, defendants have the right to waive

counsel; howe\_rer, the trial court has discretion 1o determine if that waiver was a knowing and

intelligent waiver, State v, Bryant, 383 S.C. 410, 414, 680 S.E.2d 11, 13 (2009) (citing State v.
Thompson, 355 8.C. 261-62, 584 5.E.2d at 134-35 (2003)). Specifically, in addition to reviewing
the entire record, the court also looks to ten factors in order to determine if the defendant has
sufficient background to understand the dangers of self-representation. Bryant, 383 S.C. 410,
4135, 680 S.E.2d 11, 13 (2009). Such factors include, but not limited to, whether the defendant
was previgusly invoived in criminal xriais, whether he knew the nature of the charge and of the
possible penalties, and whether he knew.he would be required to comply with trial rules of
procedure. [d. This analysis aids the court in determining whether the defendant had sufficient
background to-waive counsel or was apprised of his rights by another source. Id.

In regard to waiving counsel in a probation revocation hearing, the court first looks fo the
exchange between the court and the probation agent during the heating, Id. at 416, 680 S.E2d at
14. If the court does not explicitly address the specific dangers and disadvantages’of proceeding
pra se as required by Ferretta', the Court notes that the next inquiry is whether the defendant

signed & probation potice by his probation officer, acknowledging in part that he may .have ah

attorney represent him and if he could not afford one, one would be appointed ou:}us g%half
Bryant, 383 S.C. at 410, 416-17, 680 S.E.2d 11, 14, The probation notice typlcally;:tesg;t if Js
the defendant’s responsibility to ensure that his or her witnesses and anomey. app@r at (he
hearing. 1d: In Bryant, the court held that though the court did not explicitly warn t&’dcfendam
of the dangers and disadvantages of self-representation, because the defendant signed a probation

notice prios to the hearing informing her of her rights and considerinig her extensive cxperience

in the criminal justice system, specifically in probation court, as well as previous representation

! Faretta v. California, 422 U.S. 806, 95 8. C1. 2525 (1975)
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for the underlying charges, she had a sufficient background to waive counsel and was apprised of
her rights by some other source. 1d at 417, 580 S.E.2d at 14,

In the case at bar, Applicant signed a notice of probation, informing him of his rights, on
April 13, 2016. This notice expréssly stated thiat he may have an attorney represent him, and that
if he could not afford one, oné would be appointed for him. Therefore, the responsibility fell on
Applicamt to make arrangements to hire an attorney to appear at the probation revocation
hearing, if desired, as acknowledged in the signed probation notice. Because Applicant was
apprised of his rights by his probation agent through the signed probation. notice, Applicant
. _possesscd sufficient background to waive his right to counsel and was apprised of his rights
through his probation agent. Therefore, this court finds that the_ allegation of denial of probation
revocation counsel is withoutvmc.rit and is summarily disinissed as there is no genuine issue of

material fact and Respondent is entitled to judgment as g matter of law.

[Conclusion and Signature on Following Page]
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CONCLUSION

Pursuant to 8.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-70(b), the Court intends to dismiss this application
with prefudice unless Applicant provides specific reasons, factual or legal, why the application
should not be dismissed in its entirety. Applicant is granted twenty (20) days from the date of
service of this Order upon him to show why this Order should not become final. Applicant shal
file any reasons he may have with the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court and shall serve
opposing counsel at the following address:

Office of the Attorney General
Attn: Valerie Giovanoli, Esquire
PCR Division — 7th Circuit
P.O, Box 11549
Columbia, South Carolina 29211
Applicant is cautioned that his response to this order must be actually received by the

Spartanburg County Clerk of Court and opposing counsel within twenty (20) days, and that the

Court will not Ac'on’sidef any issues raised in his response if not so timely filed and served.

, South Carolina
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
IN THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

JAMIE A. MAKEUPSON

APPLICANT,
VS. ORDER OF DISMISSAL
THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA |
. CASE NO: 2017-CP-42-1808
RESPONDENT.

)
)
)
)
%
)  REPLY TO CONDITIONAL
)
)
)
)
)
)

This matter comes before the Court by way of Mr. Makeupson's application of
- post conviction relief filed May 22, 2017, alleging violations of his rights to due process
and assistance of counsel in his pro se probation revocation. A Conditional Order of
Dismissal was. ﬁled January 10, 2018. In response to the Condmonal Order of Dismissal
the Applicant would show that genuine issues of material facts exist and ask that the PCR.
action proceed to a full hearing. |
The attached transcript of the June 17, 2016, proceeding shows RO inquiry into
whether there was a knowing waiver of Mr. Makeupson's right to counsel. He denied
knowledge of the allegations against him, The probation agent stated that Mr, |
Makeupson had been served a probation citation. Yet, the probation citation which is
attached dated April 13, 2016, does not have Mr. Makeupson's signature or a place of ‘
service. There is no inquiry on the record to determine whether Mr. an was
edequately informed of his right to counsel or the benefits of retaining counsel. Further,
the probation court never indicated Mr. Makeupson could invoke his Sixth Amendment
right at any point prior to a final ruling. As such Mr. Makeupson's case is dlsungmshable
from State v. Bryant where the colloquy addressed these matters even though it did not
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expressly addxeés the dangers and disadvantages of appearing pro se as required
by Faretta See Faretta v. California, 422 U.S. 806, 95 S.Ct. 2525, (1 975) and State

v. Bryant, 383 8.C. 410, 680 S.E.2d 11, (Ct. App. 2009). Here, the citation does not
suffice as a waiver of rights which brings into question whether the applicant knowingly
waived his right to counsel,

The undersigned on behalf of the Applicant requests that the PCR action proceed
to a full hearing,

Respectfully submitted,

Susannah Ross ﬂ

Attorney for the Apphcant
330 E. Coffee St,
Greenville, SC 29601
(864) 242-0029

Greenville, South Carohna

This <2 day of 2018




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

)  INTHE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
, ) *
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG )  CASE NUMBER 2016-CP-42-1808
)
JAMIE A. MAKEUPSON, ) \
APPELLANT, )
) .
A ) AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE
) BY MAIL
%
THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
RESPONDANT. )
)

L 1 am the attorney for the Applicant in the above-captioned matter,

2, Regular communication by mail exists throughout the staté of South Carolina and this is aproper
circumstance of service by mail. E ‘

3 I have this day served a copy of the Reply to Conditional Order of Dismissal in the above-

captioned matter on the followmg person by depositing the same in the United States mail with proper
postage affixed thereto: -

P.0. Box 11549
Columbia, SC 29211

Atin: ‘Vgla-ie Giovanoli

Attorney for Defendant

Greenville, South olina
This 22 day of ©4£ Z, 2018.
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA }IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

, } SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG } CASE NO.: '2017-CP-42-1808
JAMIE A. MAKUPSON

)
)
vs. ) TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD
)
)

'STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

FEBRUARY 22, 2018
SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

BEFORE THE HONORABLE MICHAEL G. NETTLES

| APPEARANCES:

VALERIE GIOVANOLI, ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
COLUMBIA, SOUTH CAROLINA

ATTORNEY FOR THE STATE
SUSANNAH C. ROSS, ESQUIRE
SPARTANBURG, SOUTH CAROLINA

ATTORNEY FOR THE APPLICANT

SHIRLEY BROOM
16™ circuit Court Reporter




WITNESSES:

JAMIE A. MAKUPSON
By MS. ROSS
By Ms. Giovanoli

HANNAH PRICE
By MS. ROSS
By Ms. Giovanoli

DIRECT CROSS

12
16

18
31

RE-DIRECT RE-CROSS
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DESCRIPTION

Certificate of convictions
Notice of Probation Violation

Violation report

EV.
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11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23

24

25

M§. GIOVANOLI -~ May it please the Court.

THE COURT - Yes, ma'am.

'MS. ‘GIOVANOLI -~ This is Jamie Makupson versus The
State of South Carolina, docket number 2017-CP-42-1808. |

We're before the Court on an application for Post-

Conviction relief that was filed May 22nd; 2017. Applicant

was originally convicted on June 28th, 2013. He pled
guilty as indicted to assault and battery first degree and
assault and battery second degree and threatening the life
of a person or family or a public official, official
teacher of principal, éxcuse me. Judge Hayes sentenced him
to imprisonmenﬁ-forAconcurrent terms of ten years for
assault. and battery first degree provided that upon the
service of five-yeafs and the balance was suspended with
probation for five years, three years for assault and
battery second degree and five years for the threatening of
the life of a person or family of public official, teacher
or principal. He didn't appeal those convictions, but on
April the 4th, 2016 a probation citation was issued for
appiicant’while_he was on probation. The affidgvit stated
that he was being arrested for the following reasons:.

failure to report as instructed and having missed an office

visit, failure to refrain from changing his residence

without prior consent of the agent, failure to refrain from

the use of controlled substances having tested positive for

/
{
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10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18,
19
20
21
22
23

24

THC, cocaine and opiates on March 8th, 2016 and March 15th,
2016, failure fo work diligently at a lawful éccupation
having never provided the agent with proof of employment or
proof of any effort to obtain employment, failure to pay
supervision fee being six hundred dollars in arrears and
having never made a payment on his account since beginning

probation, failure to pay the court fine being one hundred

{and eighty dollars in arrears and having never made a

payment on this account since beginning probation, failure
to pay the one time twenty dollar drug test fee, failure to
follow the advice and instructions of the supervising agent
and failure to comply with special conditions of anger

management counseling. So on June 17th, 2016 the applicant

appeared before The Honorable R. Keith Kelly for the

probation revocation hearing. Judge Kelly revoked
‘applicant's probation and required him to serve his

remaining five-year sentence. He didn't appeal that

convietion -- I mean that probation revocation, however, he

1did file this Post-Conviction relief application alleging

two seéparate issues, one,. that the court of general
sessions lacks subject matter jurisdicfion to revoke his
probation and the other issue being whether or not he
waived his right to counsel at his probation revocation

hearing.




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

The State had filed a motion to dismiss this case

and basically we move to dismiss number one, any

allegations to the extent that he's making allegations with

regard to his guilty plea, because the statute of
limitations has ﬁun; It had expired three years by the
time he filed this Post—Conviciion relief action, but it's
my understanding that he's only filing against the
probation revocation and it is timely in that regard, but
we also move to dismiss the allegation that the court of
general sessions lacks subject matter jurisdiction to

revoke his probation. There's no genuine issue of material

fact and we'regéntitled to a judgment as a matter of law,

because the court of general sessions did, in fact, have
jurisdigtion to revoke his probation. And then‘with regard
waive his right to an attorney in the probation hearing, I
cited some case ;aﬁ,in'our fotion and I havé;a,coby of the
coutt would liké_oﬁé. May I approach?

THE COURT - Yes.

MS. GIOVANOLI - And this is State vs. Bryant and
in this case of probation, there was a probation revocation
hearing and the Coﬁrt-mérely advised Mrs. Bryant that he
(sic) had- a right to an attormey, but he (sic) didn't-
engage in the complete Faretta warnings which require a

Court to inquire as to —— or at least advise the
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10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

probationer that they héve a right to an attorney and the
dangers of proceeding pro se before they can validly find a
voluntary waiver of right to counsel. 1In that case the
Court did not advise Mrs. Bryant of the dangers of
proceeding pro se, but the Court specifically said on page
three, so they kind of saying how Faretta warnings on the
record are preferential, however, on page three, it starts
on page 415 of the actual Opinion, however, when the Trial
Court fails to expressly make this inquiry, the Court will
examine the record to determine whether the accused had
sufficient background or was apprised of her rights by some
other source. And then it continues on to explain some of
the factors that the Court looks at, and that's on page

four, they're enumerated one through ten, but what's.

gimilar that they -- both -- both this applicant and Mrs.
Bryant weren't .advis‘ea &f the dangers of procééding pro se,
and that Court found on page four, however, prior to her
hearing, Bryant signed a probation notice with her
probation officer, and it goes on to cite that probation
notice verbatim and found that also because it was Bryant's
third appearance before the probation Court for the
violation that there was a knowing and voluntary waiver of
her right to counsel. iﬁ this case -- and I'm going to

submit these I believe with stipulation —- I have already
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marked them as Court's Exhibit 1, but these are certified
convictions to show some of the applicant's prior criminail
histcry; I've also pre-marked as State's Exhibit 1 the
notice of probatién violation, which was signed by Mr:

Makupson, as well as the notice of his rights. They

| verbatim have the same verbiage as the form that was

provided in Mrs. Bryant's case of the -- the Supreme Court
case that I have handed up, so I would like to offer these
before Your Honor-with stipulation I believe ---

MS. ROSS.-‘Yes,‘we'll stipulate. We have no
objection.

THE COURT = Very good.

MS. GIGVANOLI = May I approach?

THE COURT - Yes!

-(WHEREUPON, DOCUMENTS HANDED UP TO THE COURT.)

(WHEREUPON, DOCUMENTS MARKED AS COURT'S EXHIBIT 1
AND STATE'S EXHIBIT 1.)

MS. GIOVANOLI - So at this point the State would
argue that basedlon‘the record before the Court -— and we.

do concede that there was no discussion during the

‘probation revocation in the transc?ipt regarding Mr. --

applicant's right to an attorney or the dangers of
proceeding pro se, however, we will argue that in the
record we have certified convictions to show he has an

extensive criminal history, the probation records are also
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part Qf the record and they actﬁally show that he has been
on probation five —; this is his sizth time on probation
and he has violated each and every time. The certified
cénvictionsvalso-show that he was represented by couhsel at
each one of those proceedings, and then finally; I think
the most compelling thing is the notice of the pfobation
violation, as well as the notice of rights that were signed
by -— served énd signed by Mr. Makupson -- both informed
him of his right to an attqrney and the dangers of
proceeding pro se. So I think at this point just based on
the record, we're entitled to judgment as a matter of law,
and we would move to dismiss this case at this‘point.

And one last procedural thing == I'm sorry ===
there was a conditional order of dismissal signed by Judge
Cole, and iﬁfrespohse to that Ms. Ross had filed her
response and that's why I set this for an actual oral
motion.

THE COURT ~ Yes, ma‘am, you're recoéhized.

MS. ROSS - Thank you, Your Honor.  May it please
the Court.’

I'm not sure -- do you have a copy of my reply to
the conditional order of dismissal?

THE COURT - I do. I have it right before me now.
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MS. ROSS - All right, that addresses most of our
argument, and I also have a case State vs. Brannon, if I
may approach ---—
THE COURT - Yes. |
MS. ROSS - --- I believe address the issue as
well.
(WHEREUPON,; DOCUMENT HANDED UP TO THE COURT.)
MS. ROSS - Essentially -~ and there's Moore v.
gtate that there must be a knowing and voluntary waiver of
the fundamental right in the record. I did not make a copy
of that. I'm not sure why. {(Pause) I must've -— I just
didn't make a extra copy, but here's my copy. I'm sorry
it*'s written on.
(WHEREUPON, DOCUMENT HANDED UP TO THE CO&RT.)
-THE CQURT - Yes, mé'am,

MS. ROSS - So esgeéentially Moore v. State and then

the State v. Brannon, which I've passed up, both stand for -

the law thaf there must bé a knowing and vciﬁntarily-made
waiver of fundamental right. I distinguish State v. Bryant
on page three. They print out the colloguy in my copy, "Do
you understand you have a right to have a lawyer present in
connection with these proceedings?” "Yes, sir." So while
there are no Faretta warnings specifically in State v.
Bryant, there is that recognition of the right to counseil

and that simply doesn't exist in Mr. Makupson's transcript.
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1And that's our basis to believe there's an issue of

{material fact here.

THE COURT - All right, well, you -- you may
proceed if you would ilike to call a witness or put anything
else on the record. 1I'11 be happy to hear from you.

MS. ROSS - Okay, thank you, Your Honor. May it
please the Court. We'd call Jamie Makupson.

THE COURT - Mr. Makﬁpson, if you would please
come forward. You can place your left hand on the Bible
and raise your right hand as the clerk administers the
oath. Place your left hand on the Bible and raise your
right hand, please; sir. L

JAMIE MAKUPSON, AFTER BEING FIRST DULY SWORN,

TESTIFIES AS FOLLOWS -

THE COURT -~ All right, please have a seat there,

‘Mr. Makupson. Pull up real c¢lose to that microphone and

speak loudly, clearly and slowly in order that we can hear
everything that you have to say, and let's start with your
full name and let's spell that last one for us.

MR. MAKUPSON - All right, my full name is Jamie
Anthony Makupson. May last name is spelled M-a-k-u~-p-s-o-
n.

THE COURT ~ Yes, ma'am, you're recognized.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. RO3S -
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JAMIE A. MAKUPSON - DIRECT BY MS. ROSS 12

8] Okay, Mr. Makupson, do you understand why you're here
for Post-Convictien relief?
A Yes, ma'am-.

Q And do you understand you'll be put back in the

position you were in before this probation violation?

A Yes; ma'an.

1Q Now, when your agent todk you to this probation

violation, what had happened -- what did you expect?

A I -- I never knowed I was going to a probation

violation. What was told to me -- I went to report. I
never -- I never knowed that -- she told me -- I asked for

a probation officer change. She said, meet me in the
courtroom in 30 minutés and I will change your probation
officer. ‘When I got over here, we got into a discussion
when I was sitting at‘the,_nm, the benches qver'theré, we
got into a discussion about this, and she told the judge
that I was bEihglbélligerent and that she was violating he
ahd I was asking under what terms am I beihg violated, e}

she said that I missed a report, which it's reported that I

{never -- I never missed a report. She said I changed my

address. My peopie still stay in the same address right
now to this date. And she said that um, -- she said I
changed my address and missed a report, and she stated
something else. Let me see, changed address, missed a

report, something else, but when I got in here, I'm like,
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JAMIE A. MAKUPSON - DIRECT BY MS. ROSS 13

you know, I have no ecitation, I have no warrant, I never,
you know, got a warrant or nothing like that to go to jail,
so I was like, I know that I wasn't supposed to be in jail.

I came for a probation officer change, not a violation.

|What was my violation?

THE COURT - How about the drug test?

MR. MAKUPSON - The drug test, I failed the drug
test,; but sﬁe stated I failed two drug tests on March -~ I
never had two reports in the same month. I failed the
first drug test March, 2016, the first time I ever --
what's her name -- she saying that I had another one. I

never had another one. And I brought that up in my

| transcript, too. I told the judge, I said, I never == I

never failed another. I dnly failed one drug test, and she
say I missed a report. I never missed a report, but she
had me-reportinév——band the proof of that is she had re
reporting every two months. She said I missed a reéport in
Decetiber. I started my reports in March. You do the math.
Q Okay. Now, when you went to Court, would you have
liked to have a lawyer with you?

A Yes, I -- yes, I would, and I asked about that, and
she said that I had -- I had -- she told the judge —- the
judge asked me why I didn't have a lawyer and wheﬁ I went
to answer, she jumped in over me and told.thé ;udge, no, I

told him to get a lawyer, he’'said he wasn't going to get --
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I'm like, well, he asked me a question, why did she jump in

and answer the question that he asked me? Because she had

a chance to talk but he -- she jumped in and answered my
question for me instead of letting me answer the question:
I never had a chance to get a laﬁyer, because I ain't never
—- from the get-go I didn't know I was going to Court for a
violation of probation. The thing was;, the argument we had
in her office stated that I was coming over here to get a
probation officer change. I didn't know. I been on
probation five, six times, true, been on probation five,
six times, but I -- I.figured this one time here, I said I
was getting over it, I'm going to complete probétion. I
did sixteen months. Every other probation you'll see, one

. 1
month violation. I did sixteen straight months no

problems. Only problem was me and her couldn't see eye~to-

eye. That was the only problem. I didn't catch no charges

4

‘on the street, nothing.

Q  Mr. Makupson, how far did you go in $chool?

a To the -- I went to the sixth grade, and I got a um,

\

GED and I went to college when I got my GED.

ro) Now, I'm going to show you this. It’'s a violation

report. It's part of the record. Have you ever seen that
before or do you remember seeing that before?
A f ain't never seen this before.

0 What does it say is the recommendation?
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JAMIE A. MAKUPSON -~ DIRECT BY MS. ROSS 15
A (No response)

Q What's the agent's recommendation?

A Partial revocation of two years, toll time from date

{of warrant, continue probation, time satisfies supervision

arrangements.
Q = Okay.

MS. ROSS - That's part of the record. Would you
like me to enter it separately as an exhibité

THE COURT - Yes.

MS. ROSS -~ We'd offer Applicant's 1 at this time.

MS. GIOVANOLI ~ Could you just clarify what page?

MS. ROSS = It is =+ it is the ===

(WHEREUPON, DISCUSSION IS HELD BETWEEN COUNSEL
OUT OF THE HEARING OF EVERYONE WHICH WAS NOT REPORTED.)

{WHEREUPON, DOCUMENT MARKED INTO EVIDENCE AS
APPLICANT'S EXHIBIT NUMBER 1.) |
Q Now, dovyéu think a lawyet might've helped you get
CIéSéi to that recomméndation of two years versus a full
revocation of five years?

A I'm pretty sure he would. I never knowed that I had a

recommendation of two years and they gave me a whole five

"for nothing.

MS. ROSS - I have no further questions.
THE COURT - Cross examination, yes, ma'am.

MS. GIOVANOLI - Thank you, Your Honor.
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CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MS5. GIOVANOLI -

e} Hey, Mr. Makupson, how you doing?

A I*'m fine. How you?

Q I'm okay. That document that you -— we just admitted
into evidence actually states this was your response to the
probétion officer when she asked you about where you were
living, "ffm a grown man, I can stay at other locations. I
can stay with my baby»méma for a month if I want} It
doesn't nmean I moved." Is that what you told the probation"
agent?

A I == I don't remember telling her that I can stay for
a month, but I told her that I could go spend the night
with my baby mother if I wanted to and I still lived in the

same place, yes, I told her that. I remember that, because

she was questioning me on why I wasn't at home when she

caimé for a home visit, and I told her I was over at my baby

|mother's house, anhd she was like, well, you don't -- you

don't need to be staying over there and this and that, and
I say, well; you know, I hdve a relationshi§ with my baby
mother, so it's only right that I go over and spend the
night soﬁetime, but I still stay at homé.

Q You never sought lawful employment during this time on

| probation, did you?
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JAMIE A. MAKUPSON - CROSS BY MS. GIOVANOLI 17

A I sought it many times, brought applications. She
never called the people to help me get employment. I
thought that what a probation officer supposed to do, gelp
you get employment.

0] So it's your testimony:today that you prévided her
with copies of applications -—-

A With copies of applications. I went to temp services
and all, and I brought applications to Ms. Price. She

never helped me get a job for sixteen whole months.

Q But you never did the anger management classes that
you were ---
A ~No, I never =~ I never had a anger management class.

The only one I had was the one that the judge sentenced me

to in the penitentiary. I did it and brought her the

certificate. She said it didn't count.

Q You'ré talking about when you were the department of
corrections?
A And that what it was -- it wWas on my sentencing sheet,

anger management in department of corrections and mental
health. I did menﬁal health and anger management in the
departmenf of corrections, and I brought her the
ceitificate, and she said it didn’t count.

MS. GIOVANOLI - Okay, I have no further

questions. Thank you very much.

MS. ROSS - Nothing further, Your Honor.
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HANNA PRICE - DIRECT BY MS. GIOVANOLI 18

THE COURT - You may sfep down. Thank you.

MS. RGSS - That's the applicant's case, Your
Honor.

THE COURT - All right.

MS. GIOVANOLI - And, Your Honor, the State has a
witness if the Court would —---

THE COURT - Yes.

MS. GIQOVANOLI — Agent Hannah Price.

THE COURT - Yes, ma‘am, Ms. Price, if you could
please come forward and place your left hand on the Bible
and raise your right hand as the clerk administers the
oath, or.as I administer the oath. .

HANNA PRICE, AFTER BEING FIRST DULY SWORN,

TESTIFIES AS FOLLOWS -

THE COURT - Have a seat in the witness chair.

'I'm going to ask you to pull up real close to that

microphone and speak loudly, clearly and slowly.

Ms. Giovanoli, you're recoghiZzed.
MS. GIOVANOLI - Thank you, Your Honor.
Thank you for being here, Agent Price.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. GIQVANOLI -

1@ What is your profession?
|& I'm a probation agent with the South Carolina

| Department of Probation and Parole and Pardon Services.
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8] And how long have you been in that position?

A Since August of 2013.

Q And so0 you came to be Mr. Makupson’s probation
officer. Is that correct? .

A Yes, ma'am.

1Q Can you tell me a little bit about how you came to be

jinvolved in this case?

A Yes. We are assigned by geographical address, so as
upon an offender’s first release to probation or from SCDC,
whatever address they give, we are assigned that geographic
location based on whatever agenf represents that area.

Q And is the probation. == or Mr. Makupson, was he

provided with the conditions and terms of~his probation?

A Yes, ma'am, they're provided with that upon their

seﬁtencingf so his would've been on June 28th of 2013.

1o Okay.

MS. GIOVANOLI - Ahdil will note for the. record
that is part 6f the record bf this case in the probaticn
records.

é Okay, so there was a violation in this case or you
violated Mr. Makupson. Is that correct?

A Yes, ma'am.

o) Can you please elaborate on those violations?
la Um —-—-
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HANNA PRICE - DIRECT BY MS. GIOVANOCLI 20

MS. ROSS - Judge, I would object to relevance.
We have the record, the Court record, here. The issue is
whether Mr. Makupson was denied counsel.

THE COURT - I'm going to allow some leeway. I
think it's probably important for the record for them to
understénd the nature of the violation, whethér or not it's

something that a lawyer could've assisted with. I think we

‘probably need to put it all on the record in that regaxrd.

Q Okay, so we'll just start with the first one, failure

to report and missed an office visit. Why did you violate

him for that reason?

A Um, yes, ma'am, each and every office visit I would
instruct and\give a piece of paper dictating when the next

report date would be. He was instructed, according to my

‘notes, on October 6th of 2015 that he was to report back on

December 1st of 2015 and failed to do so.

{o  was that only time he failed -- he misséd an d6ffice

visitz

A That's the only time that he was charged with missing

lan office visit. He did miss another one, but I did not

charge him with that.
o} Okay, so do you violate an offender every time that

they miss an office visit?

A No, ma'am. We try to give a little bit of

understanding, transportation, things of that nature as
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HANNA PRICE - DIRECT BY MS. GIOQVANOLI | ' 21

well as -- one office visit isn't necessary to get a person

to a Court hearing or an administrative hearing, so I try

to kind of work with them and:if the violations begin to
build up isrwpen we start to look into further action.

0 And is that what happened in this case?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Okay, and the second reason would be failure to
refrain from changing reésidence without prior consent of
the agent. Can you teil us why you violated him for that

reason?

A ‘T conducted his initial home visit on April 30 of 2015

‘at -Ol_d Farm Road. I spoke with his grandmother and his

aunt who stated that while his mail was at the address and .
being forwarded to the address, the offender did not reside
there, nor Wés he welcome to reside there. I fhahkéd-thémA
for their information and they stated that the offende:
lived with his sister somewheére in the ¢&ity. I just asked
themm to have him contact me as soon as possible.

Q  Okay, and then did you have any discussions with the

Mr. Makupson regarding residence?

A Yeé. Upon his next report he stated repeatedly that
he -- he did, in fact, live there. I_expiained to him that
just because your mail goes to a certain area is not
necessarily where you lay your head. He then changed his

address to -Alma Bird (phonetic) Lane.
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‘| HANNA PRICE - DIRECT BY MS. GIOVANOLI : 22

Q So he told you at first he lived with his grandmother
and mother was it, or aunt?

A Aunt.

Q And then he later in that same conversation said he

lived somewhere else?

A Yes; ma'am.

Q And did he ever seek permission to change his address
with you prior to moving?
A No, ma'am.

Q And so when he gave you the second address, what else

did he say?

A Um, there were further discussions each time.

According to their conditions, they are to bring proof of

reésidence of proof of employment at each report date. He

was instructed to do that in that he had already moved once
without showing ie proof of résidence I needed to be able
to see. I asked him on an 6ffice visit -- excuse me for

just ohe secohd -—-

(WHEREUPON, APPLICANT IS MUMBLING SOMETHING WHICH |

WAS INAUDIBLE)
THE COURT - All right, now, Mr. Makupéon, ——
MR. MAKUPSON - I apologize.
PHE COURT - --- you know, it's my job to listen
to all of the evidence that‘s being presented here today

and to make a ruling, but I also have an obligation to
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1 {maintain the order in the Court, and now is no% the time

2 |for you to talk —--

3 MR. MAKUPSON - Yes, sir.

4 THE COURT -~ --— and I'm going to order that you
5 |not have anymore outbursts, ---

6 . MR, MAKUPSON ~ Yes; sir.

7 THE COURT - --- and if you do, then I'm going to
8 |order that they remove you from the courtroom, and at the
9 conclusion of the day I'm going to bring you back in for a
10 |contempt hearing and you can get'an additional six months
11 for‘that, or depending upon the severity of your outburstsf

12 |it might be that you == that there will be proceedings ==

13 {you'll be allowed =~ afforded a lawyer and we will go
14 | forward, but just -- just by another outbursts, I can give
15 |you six months without a lawyer summarily. Do you

16 |understand that?

17 ] MR. MBKUPSON - I understand.

18 THE COURT - You going to cooperate with me?

19 § MR. MAKUPSON - Yes, sir, 1I'm going to cooperate.
20 .THE COURT - Very good.

21 fés, ma'am.

22 MS. GIOVANOLI - Thank you, Your Honor.

23 |0 Do.you remember where you were?

24 |A Regarding his address.
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0 Okay. So then after he told you he was living
somewhere else, then what did he say?
A He stated oﬁ September 29th, 2015 when the agent —-
when I advised him that he -- he stated that I had his
address; when he was asked to verify his address; he stated
I had it and he didn't know it. I advised him he needed to
bring a piece of mail validating his address. The offender
became angry and was asked to leave and bring me baék proof
of address in two weeks.
Q So his demeanor during that meeting, how was that?
A Belligerent and aggressive to the point where he had
to be escorted out. |

_MS. ROSS = And, Judge, again, I would object to
the relevance in this -- for this proceeding.

THE COURT - Well, I think it is relevant because
one of the things that needs to be put on the recoid is
whether or not, you know, theéere's a wvalid OfféﬁSé to his

probation violation. I think that's important, and I'm

going to allow theéem to do that, but your objection is noted

on the record.

MS. GIO?ANOLI - Thank you, Your Honor.
o} Okay, so we'll go to the third violation. That was:
the failed drug test. You heard Mr. Makupson claim that he

only took one drug test, but your record -- the records
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| HANNA PRICE - DIRECT BY MS. GIOVANOLI ’ 25

indicate that there were two. Is it your testimony today
that there were two drug tests?

A Yes, ma'am. He was drug tested on March 8th when he
was given what was calléd a financial summons where

everybody would come to Court to discuss their financial

issues with the probation office. It was not a Court

hearing in front of a Judge; per se, just going in the

actual courtroom to be able to house and address as many

offenders as we had that day. ‘He was given a -~ I
apologize -~ a drug test that day. He was positive for

cocaine, marijuana and opiates. He stated that his drug --

{or his system should be clean by the next week, so I-

advised him that he had to come in the very next week,
lett's drug test for everything again and then go from

there. That very neéxt week he was again positive for

‘opiates, THC and cocaine.

Q And wés that drug test taken on 3/157167

A Yes, ma‘am.

Q All right, so theﬁ the next violation would've been a
failure to work diligently at a lawful occupation. Did he
ever provide you any proof that he was seeking iawful -

lawful occupation?

1A Not that he —— not that he was -- that he had applied.

|He stated to me on January 12th that he was, quote, trying,

and has turned down jobs at Leer & Excel due to
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transportation issues and is looking at a job -~ I believe
he called it Nemato on the bus line but had not brought me

any proof of those efforts to obtain.

Q Okay, and is that a requirement or a condition of his
probation?
A Yes, especially when somebody is having trouble

getting any employment, I need to see that you're actually

showing applications. 1I'll give job search forms, things

of that nature, bring them back to me with the people that

I could contact if you did contact them yourself.

0 Did you, in fact, assist him in trying to get lawful
occupation?
A We have a lists of various temp agencies that work

with offenders with records. I did give him that. As far

as any other thing, I do not recall.

Q Okay, and then we'll go to the failure to pay the

supervision fee. That was a violation. Why did you

violate him on that?

A Just éimply due to his arrearage at the time of the

issuance.

Q And do you typically as your practice violate people
, o

just for failing to pay a supervision fee?

A No, ma‘an.

Q is that something that you add on when they've

violated other conditions?
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A We're informed that we have to address all violations
at the time of the issuance and process.

Q And that would also be relevant té the failure to pay
the Court fine?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And the failure to pay the one time twenty dollar drug

test fee?
A Yes, ma'‘'am.
Q Qkay. And then we've got two other ones, failure to

follow the advice and instructions of the supervising
agent. I believe you've'testifiedlto a little bit of that.
Did you leave anything out? Is there anything additional?

A Just generally == general, be here in the bffice’aﬁd

| the community, so on and so forth, as well as anything that

I instruct you to do is subject to that, failure to follow
advise and insttfuctiohns.

{¢  And -~ okay, and then the last one is failure to

comply with special condition of anger management

|counseling. He testified that he actually did do the anger

nanagement counseling, so why —— why did you violate him
for that reason?

A Per our supervisors, when somebody has done those
things in SCDC, we still require that they do them on the
outside unless it is an extensive program that is fitting

to what we do with our providers, Don Foster or The
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1 |Forrester Center, whateverAthe case me. In Mr. Makupson's

2 |case, I was instructed by my supervisor that he needed to
3 |attend anger management counseling per the sentencing

4 |sheet, therefore; 1I did refer him. |

510 And did you inform him that that was going to be a

6 |requirement, a condition of the probation?

7 |A Yes, ma'am.

8 |0 And what was his response to that?

9 |A Belligerence each and every time that we spoke about
10 jit. |

11 1Q Was he belligerent on more than one office visit?
12 |A Yes, ma'am, there == his very first office visit he

13 héd to be escorted out of the building, an office visit on
14 |-- I apologize -- he —- he was instructed to speak to my
15 |supervisor because he would not calm down long enough to
16 |speak with me about anything that was going on wiﬁh his

17 |case, and theh when he was served a citation, again,

18 |belligerence to the point of being escorted out of the

12 joffice.

20 iQ Ckay. And Whgt's -— it's already been admitted into
21 evidence; but you have with you State's Exhibit 1 for

22 |reference, the notice of the probation violation as well as

23 |the notice of rights.

24 MS. GIOVANOLI - May I approach with the State's

25 |Exhibit?




10
11

12

13

14

15

16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

|
HANNA PRICE - DIRECT BY MS. GIQVANOLI ' ‘ 29
THE COURT - Yes.
{(WHEREUPON, DOCUMENT HANDED UP)

Do you recognize this document?

Q

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And did you serve this on the -- Mr. Makupsoné
A Yes, ma'am.

Q And when did you servé it on him?

1A April 13, 2016,

Q .Okay, and did you witness him sign that?

A Yes, ma'am.

o] As well as the other notice. Were these served
| together?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q A1l right. Thank you. Did you have'any other

ldiscussions with Mr. Makupson about his right to an

s

attorney or anything regarding a lawyer for the probation
revécatidn hearing?

A Yes, ma‘am. He showed up to my office on June 14th,

{2016, three days priof, on a Tuesday, which would standard

be my report date. He stated that he thought I said that
we wefe going to Court. I advised'him that Court was not
until Friday. I asked the offender on that day if he had
gotten an attorney and he just shrugged his shoulders and
the agent said why haven't you éotten one. He shrugged his

shoulders again. I asked if he didn't feel like it; the
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offender said yes, and I asked if he was going to represent

himself, and he stated yes. He was advised te then return -

I'pack on Friday for a hearing:

Q okay, and based on your review of this cése, did Mr.
Makupson -have a prior history with probation?

A Yes, ma'am; he had been placed.on probation, as it was
stated before, five previous times and revoked in full all
five prior times. This was his sixth time.

Q There was some testimony earlier about.a
recommendation that you had made for -- okay, it's on -- in

the documents, the probation revocation document. I'm sure

| you know what I'm talking about better than I do. It's

under agent's recommendation. This has been admitted as

Applicant's Exhibit 1. Partial revocation §f two years,

toll time from date of warrant, continne probation, time
‘satisfies supervision fee arrearages. Can you eéxplain
that?

A Yes, ma'am. As I have it, when the citationms are

drafted, we typically will start this process where we make

a recommendation. They are not finalized until previous to

the Hhearing, typically. a couple of days prior to the

hearing. I try to go a little bit less forceful in the
event that we can work with the offender based on their
behavior, so on and so forth. After Mr. Makupson's

behavior when being served with the citation, I changed my

73




74
' |HANNA PRICE - CROSS BY MS. ROSS - - 31

1 justificaticn. I had forgotten to change my recommendation'

2 |at that time.

3]0 Okay. BSo this wasn't, in fact, your recommendation to
4 |the Court the day of the probation recommendation.

5 {A Correct.

6 MS. GIOVANOLI - I have no further questions.

7 Thank you very much,

8 THE COURT ~ Any cross examination?

9 ‘MS. ROSS - I just =--

10 |CROSS EXAMINATION

11 {BY MS. ROSS "

12 {0 You were\** some of your testimony before was he

13 |said/she said. Did you record all this? 1Is this a

14 |transcript of recordings?
15 |{A  No, ma'am, we don't make it a -- a habit to record
16 anything;ip_bqr probation office in an effort to kind of
17 procuré trust between the offendéer and:the agéﬁt. ‘This is
18 jall notations théﬁll‘had.made throughout his tenure cn“my'
19 |case load.

20 |Q So those are specific notations that you just

21 |testified to about he then shrugged his shoulders and he
22 |went like this and those are all in your records? |

23 |A Yes, ma'an.

24 1Q All right.

25 | - MS. ROSS ~ I've got no further questions.
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THE COURT - All right, you may -— you may -— any
redirect?

MS. ROSS - No further questions.

THE COURT - You may step down. Z2Any further
testimony or anything to offer from the State?

MS. GIOVANOLI - No; Your Honor.

THE COURT - These are very important matters and
-- and I want an opportunity to review this, ﬁhink on it,
énd I'm going to ask that both lawyers send in proposed

orders and ask that you do that within -- Ms. Giovanoli, I

know you have a lot of orders out. How iong do you need to |

do your proposed orders?

MS. GIOVANOLI = I can guarantee I'1l get them to

{you in two weeks.

THE COQURT - Okay. Defense counsel -— yes, ma’am.
How long do yéu think -- could you do it within fourteen
days?

MS. ROSS - I could, Your Honor.

THE COURT - Okay. And you've done a good job
setting forth your position on the reply to conditional
order of‘dismissal, so hopefully y'all will be agle to do
that. Send that to my office in Florence with a self-
addressed, stamped envelope enclosed so I can return it to

the clerk's office -- return it to you and the order that's
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signed can then be filed with the clerk of court and served
on everyone.

MS. ROSS - Judge, I'm out of Greenville. Would
you mind if it did make it addressed to the clerk of court
here, the envelope that I ---

THE COURT - Well, it might be a problem, because
I won't be ablé to sign it.

MS. ROSS - I see. QOkay.

THE COURT - That's the reason you send it to me
and I'm going to review both of them. I'm going to sign
one or the other or draft my own.

MS. ROSS +~ Right.

THE COURT = And if you send it to me and I send

1it back to you and it needs to be a return address'tb you,

{and I'11 send it back to you and if I sign your order,-then |

you have it filed.

MS. ROSS ~ All right, thank you.

THE COURT - That's the way it operates.

All right. Thank you, and Mr. Makupson, good
luck to you. )

MR. MAKUPSON - Yes, sir.

(END OF TRANSCRIPT)
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 uth Carolirpdepartment of Pro’ “ion, Parole and Pardon Services

ration Report , :
Offender's Name: JAMIE ANTHONY MAKUPSON
state of South Caroling, County of. SPARTANBURG Wamantd:  C-42-16-0177
108 01061614 , ) Date of Birth: Jaigm1979
‘ ] SCDC#: 281398
!ndicmgn; Numbers: Offense and Offense Code:
13-GS-42-02321 3412 - Assault & Battery 1st Degree
Superv_fsidﬁ Program: Probation Begin Date: 3/16/2015 a End Date:  3/15/2020
Supervisionievel  High Supervision Potential End Date: 9/2/20186 Adjusted End Date:  3/15/2020
Sentencing Judge: 132-Hayes, J. Sentencing Counly: SPARTANBURG

Sentencing Date:  6/28/2013
Location (Bold Response): Community

Sentence:
Assault and Battery 1st degree: 10 years suspended to 5 years and 5 years probation.

Specilal Conditions:

Fine-$648.90.

No contactwith Victim

Anger Management Classes

Mental Health Compliance

Surrent Address and Summary of Residence:

SN SPARTANBURG, SC 29301, SPARTANBURG, USA,

BB OORE, SC 29369, SPARTANBURG, USA, ; SIS SPARTANBURG, SC 29306, SPARTANBURG, USA,
The offender reports living with his sister at SIS However the offender has argued with the Agent at EVERY OFFICE VISIT,
stating that he lives In the same place and doesn’t need to provide the Agent with proof. Agent advised that this is part of his conditions.
Upon the Agent's initial home visit, the offender's grandmother and aunt stated that he did not live st IS 0" was he
" welcome there, he just sent his mall there. When asked, the offender stated repeatedly that he lived there; that is where is mail is. Agent
had to explain to the offender what a residence Is. Atthe offender's last office visit when the citation was issued, Agent had conducted a-
“home visiton 4/11/16; where the Agent was informed that the offender had not beei séen at his sister’s iome for 2 week. The offénder
becarvie aggtessive and belfigerent when confronted with this information, stating that I am a growh man, and | can stay at other
Jocations, 1<an stay with my baby mama for a month If | want to, doesn't meani moved." Agent advised offender that this is not the first
time he has "misundeistood” what residence means, and that he can only have one residence. The offender became so aggressive, the
Agent gave him a copy of the citation and hearing notice, and had him escorted out of the office. _
Repornting; : ‘ .
The offender generally reports as instructed.

Employment Records Whils Under Supervision: - _ 7
Employer ' Dates (from -10) - Reason(s) for Leaving Earnings

Disabled 4/7{2015-
| 6/10/2008-4/72015 | |

The offender states he is disabled. wa«eve_r the offender has provided no proof of his disabifity. The offender statesthat he is looking for
3 job at every office visit, but has never provided proof, and constantly uses his background as an excuse.

Financial Conditions:

-

Total Amount Pay Pericd Total Paid |Datelast Prearage {Balance
ordered : Paid Due

Fees

Drug Test Fee ) $20.00 1 320.00/M $0.00 520.00 $20.00

1 1106 (Template} [Revislon: D Revision Date: 1/31/1998])
131 0f2




] Carolina Department of Prc*-tion, Parole and Pardon Services ' 79
dion Report
Offender’s Name: JAMIE ANTHONY MAKUPSON

Regular Supervision $3,000.00 $50.00/M so00] $700.00)  $3,00000
Fines |

Court Ordered Fines $648.90 $15.00/M sopo| | s21000] 64890
Prior Violation |Prior Violations Prior Viclation Disposition

Dates : o

Details of the Present Violation:
Violation of probation sections 1,2, 3, 5,7,9, 10 and special conditions as ordered under cause number 13-6S-42-02321 by the
Spartanburg County Court of General Sesslons. .

Fallure to report as Instructed having missed an office visit on 12/W/15. ,

Fallure to refrain from changing residence without prior consent of the Agent. On 4/30/2015, the Agent was Informed by the
homeowner, that the offender did not reside at JJlJOId Farm Rd. as he reported, but just uses it for mailing purposes. The Agert did
not know the offender's true location or address at that time, and the offender Is considered to have absconded supervision. The
offender did not inform the Agent until pressed at his next office visit on 542012015 where his actual resideince was.

Failure to refraln from the use of controlled substances having tested positive for THC, Cocalne and Opiates on 3/8/16 and 3/15/16,
Failure to work diligently at a lawful occupation, having never provided thie Agent with proof of employment, or proofof any effort
to obtain employment. : : o

Fallure to pay supervisiori fee being $600 in arrears and having never made a payment on this a¢count since beginning probation on
03/16/15. ' ' :

Failure to pay court fine being 5180 In arrears and having never made a paymenton this atcount since beginning probation on
03716115, :

Fallure 1o pay one time $20 drug test fee.

Faflure o follow the advice and instructions of the supervising Agent.. _ ‘ :

Failure to comply with special condition of Anger Management Counseling. The offender has been referred on 3/23/15, 7/28115,
10/6/15 and 1/12/16 and has falled to show up for any classes to date. .

Agent's Recommendation:
partial revocation of 2 years, Toll time form date of Warrant. Continueprobation . Time satisfies supenvision fee arrearages.

Agents Justification: _ '
This offenderis in no way suitable for probation. This is his 6th time on probation, having been revoked all 5 other times. The

- offender s argumentative, disrespectful, and has it 5ét in his mind that probationwill 'b_e' doné on his terms. The very first office visit
_the offender had with the Agerit, he was so aggressive, the Ageat had him escorted out of the bullding, and told to report the next
week: That has happened twice since he began probation, He has even had to speak with supervisors regarding his behavior in the

office. The offender has a SIGNIFICANT anger and violence problem; as the offender’s rap sheet reads 9 arrests for Criminal Domestic
Violence, 2 for Kidnapping, 2 for Burglary 15t and 2 for Assault of Police Officer while resisting arrest. Furthermore, the offender hasa.
significant drug problem, having tested positive for Cocaine and Oplates, as well as THC. Cocaine is a known drug toincrease
aggression, which seemingly isthe last thing this offender needs, Couple his already Inherent aggression with drugs, his lack of
accountabifity and responsibility and his complete disregard for the safety of others, this Agent believes the offender posesan
imminent and fmmediate danger to the community. This Agent feels as if his disregard for being referred to Anger Management
Counseling, but placing priority and his monetary allocations toward drugs as opposed to helping himself, or paying for probation;
shows his blatant distegard for the faws or rules that he believes do not pestain to him, This Agent feéls that this offender should .
never have been placed on probation; and it is just 2 matter of timie before he commits another assaultive offense; thus the Agentis.

requesting a full revocation.

Hannah Price. A:_’_/Embam’g m Date: 5/12/2016

- , —ﬂ -~ -~
Supervisor's Signatfire v P’ _ J"\,ﬁate: 5 SE ~ 24
. e —K—-” - “-4\\ 0“ -
/

e
e
’

wm 1106 (Template) [Revision: D Revision Date: 1/31/1998)
e 2 0f2



80

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG IndictmentNo. ____ -GS- ‘.
Probation/Community Supervision Program _
State of South Carolina Violation
v. . : \ Warrant/Citotion i _ - .~ -
e Vb gl omorormonnoves

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF NOTICE

You mT hereby directed to appcar at a Probatwn/CSP Violation Hearing in General Sessions Court on
( I/J i1 ' { I) at B:30am in the Spartanburg County Courthouse, Spartanburg, South
Carofita, '

You may have an attorney at your expense represent you at this hearing: If you cannot afford an aitomey
and you desire the representation of the Spartanburg Couaty Public Defender, you must apply for an
appointed atlorney with that office, If you choose to appenr at the hearing without an altorney, you may
be required to represent yourself, You are hereby advised there are dangers and disadvantages to self-
representation, An stioraey may better understand cowrtroom procedure and may be better able o think of
and present defenses to your violations, By eppedring without an attorney, you are acknowledging these
dnngers but are knowingly and voluntarily choosing to pmceed without counsel,

At the violation hiearing you wifl have the opportunity to speak, and you may present witnesses or
documentary svidence on your behalf. If requested, you will also have the opportunity to confront md
cress-examine any witnesses called to testify against you; however, the Department may elect to present
affidavits of witnesses or police officers in lieu of testimony, State v, Pauling (Ct. App. 2006). It is § your & B
responsibility-to have your witnesses and attorey pregent. ¥ you are relcaseéd i bond prior to your

hearing date, you must report to the Probation Office immediately upon your release,

You are required to be at the hearing as scheduled rbave. If you do nat appear, a bench warrant or failure
to appear warrant will be issued for ‘your-arrest; Furthermore, the Court may choose to proceed with the
hearing in your absence. This directive remains in effect until you are grastod leave by the Coust.

‘also given an opporiuaity

Report to Agont ‘PUKU) ’ ;_ . -

Immediately upon your relcase
Phone Number (864) 596-2582

Fonn 1364 {Tempiate) 6/26/2007

Agent’s\ﬁ_éhamre
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SCDPPPS ' CaseNo: __ -GS-___ -
Forin 26,1 . »
NOTICE OF RIGHTS

© AStatement of the Righgg of the Accused
You have been charged with a Vielation of Probation/CSP and referred to General Sessions Court.
You are advised:

-You have the right to employ counsel to represent you, | | )

~In the evenl you are financially unable to emptoy counsel; the State witl provide you with counsel by the
appointment or with the services of the Public Defender of Spartanburg County, If you désire 1he Stite to
provide you with counsel, you must apply for counsel. It is your rosponsibility to contact the Spartanburg
County Public Defender’s Office if you so desire thicir services, and you should contact their office within
48 hours of recelving this notice, The address and telephone number ure listed below, Your failure to
either contact the Public Defender’s Office or employ counsel prior to your hearing date will not serve as
a basis to continug your hearing and could result in your bond being revoked, resulting in your
incarcération. In nddition, the Court could ditermine that by your fuiling to epply for counsel, youhave
‘waived your right to an attorney and proceed with the Violation o{ Probation/CSP hearing.

This form has been read to the accused, . O\Y\f\.\i’ ‘\I\C\\{ s {,,(U\/k ; in my presence at

' 7 i . ';tl (B,r‘r;}/‘p;n this Z%f ~ day of _S—)é(?ﬂ_b[ ' - {)Hp

L4

SPARTANBURG COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER'S OFFICE
366 N, CHURCH STREET, SUITE 3000, SPARTANBURG, SC 29303
(864) 5962561

2 . I.lN ' §’.‘ ‘-V 3 -" ' o : BR

The undersipned certifies that he/she has been informed of the charges against him/her and the nature

- thereof, and that he/she is unable to employ counsel. However, the undersigned now stated that he/she
does yot at this time desire to apply for the appointment of counset or for the services of the Public
Defender, and expressly waives histher desire to services of counsel provided by the State at this time,
which he/she undérstands he/she has @ right to. '

Executed before me on this ____day of . ,

Defendant Agent
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT
:
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on . HIY P the

Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their cath:

ASSAULT AND BATTERY 2™ Degree

/
/

That the Defendant, Jamie Anthony Malkupson, did in Spartanburg County on or
about the date of February 28, 2013, commit an zssault and battery on the victim,
Deputy Brian Cunningham, and/or unlawfully rnjure»the victim, and/or did offer or attempt
to injure the victim with the present ability to do so by causing moderate bodily injury to
the victim; to wit: by repeatedly striking the victim about the face and head with his fist
causing serious injuries including but not limited to a swollen eye, lacerations to the eye
area and possible damage to his left ear which required the victim to seek treatment for
his injuries, in violation of §16-3-600(D)(1), THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH
CAROLINA, (1976), as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case

made and provided. : M :

ASSISTANT SOLICITOR l
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POUTH CAROLINA j “IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS o
7 QF ~ SPARTANBURG _ 3
C R : @ﬁcmr\m;\sa 2013GS4202919
: ’(,7\ _ Jamie Anthony Makupson ‘ @%%& AWE:  2013A4210200731
,f“ S E _ﬁ sE ) Date of Offense: _2/26/2013
7 Race: B lSe,x:A M Age: 34 ) S.C.Code § ; _16-03-0600 (D)1}

CDR Code &, 3413

Address:

City State, Zip: ¢
Ciy Saie. 2 (/é . SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes{ [ No[] €MV Yes[ No[] Hazmat Yes[ : No[] j , ,
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was {] CONVICTEDOF or KIPLEADS
TO: Assaul/Assault and Batterv-2nd degree (up to 3 'vears &?or up 10 $2500) ) e
inviolanonof  § 16-03-0600 (DX1) . of the S.C. Code of‘ Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3413
] NON-VIOLENT [} VIOLENT T[JSERIOUS  [MOSTSERIOUS  {“JMandatory GPS(CSC ~ [(]§17-25-45
) wiminor 1st or Lewd Act}
The charge 1s:  [X] As [adicted.  [jLesser [ncluded Olfense, JDetendam Waives Presentmerit to Grand Jury, {defendant's fnitials)

Vegatiations or Recommendation Ncgouated Ser?g z [0 Recommendation. by the State,

‘SC Baré Defen ant - Anomey for Defendant SC Bars

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the

" fora determmate term of _S_ day s!m _

and/or to pay a fine of §

:Statc.De_panmem of Corrections, [ ] County Detention Center,

{7] underthe Youthful Offender Act. not to exceed years
upon the serviceof days/months/years and/or payment

-of$ , ; plus costs and assessments as applicable”: the balance is suspended with probatien for

months/vears and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Servicés standard conditions of
rgbation, which are incorporated by reference.

‘CONCURRENT or (J CONSECUTIVE 1o sentence on:

*The Defeadant is to be given credit for{ime served ursuant to S.C. Code I 24-13-40 1o be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections. %

[0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Cemral Remstn' of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code £17-23-1335.

Pursuzat to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is ualawful for a person convicted of a viglation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Cnmma!
Domestic Violence) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPEC'AL CONDITIONS:

DREST]T(_,T(ON ] Deferred [} Def. Waives Hearing {JOrdered PTUP
Totak: .$ e plus20%Jee: 3 : ___ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED D
(7 Serby SCDPPPS - : - Auend Voc. Rehab. or Job.Corp.

- May serve WE begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling ]
*Fine: s Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0
§ 14-1-206 {Assessments 107.5 %) 3 . Fine may be pd. in equal. consecutive sweekly/monthly
% 14-1.211{AX 1} (Conv. Surcharge) 5100 S Zﬂ— pmis. of § beginning
B 14-1-21HAN2) (DU Surcharge) S0 S N L
S $6-5-2095 (DL Assessment) <3 < b e pmd to. Pubhc Delcnder Fund
§' 36-1-28A (DU Breath Test) $3 S
Proviso 47.9 ( Public Del7Prob) 5500 7§ UU (M&W{}*\,L%ﬂ (/»{ L{jﬁ
§ 19-1-202 {Law Enforce. Funding) $25, 3 (ﬁ' LU Al LA 2
% 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) s130 % L\ \' ! " ' _
§ 50-21-7 LKL Breath Test Fee) S50 3 }/M,CM
§ 56-3-2942( 11 Vehicle Assessment) S X ~\ s Omtul PD or
Praviso 90.3 (SCCIA Surcharge) S S A L) 3 47.12 requirgd S35
oo Covniy (i paid in installments) S HHU during probatfon.
TOTAL ST33.9C L/

Presiding Judge

Sudge Code: {-521‘ -

Sentence Date:™ [ £ ) A
w4
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Cowenr Ruporter

SCCA 753208 1)
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Sf’“"a“r's‘r‘a%ﬁ,i‘ﬂ‘éy Detention {‘g,’?-”‘y . The State of South Carolina
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Barry J. Barnette, Solicitor
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RACVEA4210200822 » vs. 53- - S
ACTION OF GRAND JURY
Jamie Anthony Makupson

Imam Maﬁ

Date:
VEHDICT - .
Indictment for

THREATENING A PUBLIC OFFICIAL

SC Code: 16-3-1040
CDR Gode: 541
Class FEWF

S eetosmoes st o ottt vt bt tert
bRttt gAY

Foreperson ol Petit Jury
Date: .
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STATEOF SOUTHCAROLINA )} . . INDICTMENT .-
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG )

. s Toanen
JUN i3 T

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on . the

Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath:

THREATENING A PUBLIC OFFICIAL

That Jamie Anthony Makupson did in Spartanburg County on or
about March 2, 2013, knowingly and willfully delivered or conveyed to a
public official verbal communication which contained a threat to take the life
of or to inflict bodily harm upon the public official, Spartanburg County
Détent’ion Facility Officer Jordan Guinn and the threat was directly related
to the public official's professional responsibilities, by telling the officer he
would inflict bodily harm to him, in violation of §16-3-1040, THE CODE OF "
- LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, (1976, as amended.)

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case

made and provided. , ‘
; M(Q (:Qm A

ASSISTANT -soucuroj




;«n Yor bl‘AKH‘:NHURU ) . , 87
JE VS, e me JTMENT CASES 2013654202920
A i Jamie Anthony Makupson AIWE: _2013A4210200822
s . ) Date of Offense: 3722013
‘r(ace B Sex M Age: 34 ) S.C.Code £ ;_16-03-1040

CDR Code #: 0541

Address. .
City,Stat€ Zip: =y ; I 4 L

BLe- SENTENCESHEET
*CDL Yes[T] No[]] CMV Yes{:] No!{} Hazmat Yes[] I\o[:] 7
In disposition of the said indictment comes-now the Defendant who was {3 CONVICTEDOF or {XIPLEADS
TO: Threat/ Threa(enmo life, person or family of public official (up to 5 years &/or up 10 $30001
inviolation of § 16-03-1040 of the SC. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # - 0341
(X] NON-VIOLENT T} VIOLENT [JSERIOUS CIMOST SER!__OUSi CiMandatory GPS(CSC [1817-25-45
wiminor §5t or Lewd Act)
Thecharge is:  [X] As Indicted, [ JLesser Included Otfense, [ ]Defendant Waives Presentment 1o Grand Jury. ‘{défendant’s initials)
23 15 Vithout Megotiations or Recommendanon Negonated Sente Recommendation by the State.
4
‘ ’ o SC Bar# Defenflant At_lorncy for Defendant SC Baré
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the X State Department of Carrections, 7] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term.of {7 under the Youthful Of fender Act not to exceed years
andfor to pay a fine of $ 7 wded that upon the service of- days/months/years and/or payment
of & ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

monthsiyears and subject 10 South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
pri banon which are incorporated by reference. )
- CONCURRENT or [7] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: v
) The Défendant is to be-given credit for time 5 irved pursuant to S.C. Code 3 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
bv the State Department of Corrections. WL
[_’_] The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Regist of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to I8 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of 3 violatioa of Section [6-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminat
Domestic thence } to ship,{ransport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

_SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[]RESTITUT{ON- (] oeferced [j Dof. Waives Hearing [ | Ordered  PTUP
Total: § , plus 20% fee:
Payment Terms: .
{7].Set by SCDPPPS

days/hours Public Service Employment
ObtainGED  []

Attend Voc. Rebab. or Job Corp.
May serve W/E begining

! ) enfua
1 1 e

Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling ]
*Fine: _ Random Drug/Alcohol testing :
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
$14-1-21 {AX 1)} {Conv. Surcharge) $100 pmis.of§ . begining
§ 14-1-21 4 A)2) (DUI Surcharge) S106  §
§ 56-5:2995 (DUL Assessment) 512 T th _ paid lo Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) s235 7% o "Mf 1=
Pro\’iso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) 5500 & (\e) t UUN \,\/‘\/&E/L‘V\'
‘g 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) 525 $ éb—"'g )
§ i4-1- 213 {Drug Coun Surcharge} S150 3
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 s
'§36-5-2942()) (Vehicle Assessment} $40/ea  § [] Appointed PD or dpgoint
Proviso 90.3 {SCCJA Surcharge) $3 g A, 8§ 47.12 requires 530
Sp10 County  (if paid in instaliments) S A during probation
TOTAL 3 [ {4(

Presiding Judge

Clerkof Court? Dupt@ %& % &OCJ\'\ L—QL-Q Judge Code:
\

Court Reporter: Sentence Dater

SCCA 217 103:2011),
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g The State of South Céarolina
County of Spartanburg

Barry J. Barnette, Solicitor
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Date: ) .
Indictment for

VERDICT _
" ASSAULT AND BATTERY 1% Degree

SC.Code: 1 6~3v-600(C.)(_‘1)
CDR Code: 3412
Class FELE

§8

Foreperson of Pelit Jury
Date:



STATE OF SOUTH CARQLINA )} . INDICTMENT

)
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG )

LTAS ]

%

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on ___ ‘ _ ' , tihe

Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath:

ASSAULT AND BATTERY. 1* Degree

That the Defendant, Jamie Makupson, did in Spartanburg County on or about March

11, 2012, commit an assault and battery on the victim, Titania Stephens, by unlawiully,
(2) Injuring the victim, and the act: o
{i) involved nonconsensual touching of the private parts of an adult, either
under or above clothing, with lewd and lascivious intent; or
(i)  oceurred during the commission of a robbery, burglary, kidnapping, or
theft; or
{b) did offer or attempt to injure the victim with the present ability to do so, and the
act: (
(i) was accomplished by means likely to produce death or great bodily injury;
or

(i)  occurred during the commission of a robbery, burglary, kidnapping, or -

theft.
To wit: by striking her about the body with his fists in vilation of §16-3-B00(C)(1), THE
CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, (1976), as amended. '

Against the peace and dignit_y of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case

made and provided.

ASSISTANT SO%%C!T;R; i

89



HF SOOFH CAROLINA  * ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
Y OF SPARTANBURG

; Vs, ef INDICTMENT/CASE#: __2013G54202321
f Jamie Anihony Makupséi nmﬁ@t aws:. Dwrect T ctlen

—_— ) Date of Offense: _3/11/2012
) ) SC.Code § ;_16:03-0600 (CX2)

N CDR Code #: _ 3412

L SENTENCE SHEET

DL Yes[[} No{:} CMV Yes{T] No[] Hazmar Yes{] No D

disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was ] CONVICTEDOF or RIPLEADS

J: Assauft / Assault & Bantery 1st degree (up to 10 years) ' ,

1 violation of § 16-03-0600(C)2) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3412

J NON-VIOLENT {J VIOLENT [JSERIOUS  [JMOSTSERIOUS  [JMandatory GPS{CSC [J817-25-45

wiminor 15t or Lewd Act)

e charge 5. X As tndicted, [TJLesser Included Offense,  []Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. " {defendant’s initials)

ot is; sedtiations or Recommen atipn, 1" Negotiated Sen {9 Recommendation by the State.

%m‘..._t&é?em ;; 254,
C Ba Defendafit - "7 Attarney‘for Defendant SC Bar¥

JHEREFORE, the Defendant is commitedtothe T} State Department of Corrections, [| County Detention Center,
ara determinate term of u} days/mo " & 6t [ under the Youthful Offender Act not o exceed years
nd/or 1o pay-a fine of § s provided-thiat upon the service of days/montys And/or payment

{3

0n __s/ygars i'subject to South Carolina Depariment of Probation. Parole and Pardon Services standard condilions of
' . whitch are incorporated by reference.

CONCURRENT or [0 CONSECUTIVE 10 seniénce on: )

N The Defendant is to be given credit foigne-se»y@grsuam 0 S.C. Code § 24-13-40 10 be-calculated and applied

: plus costs and assessments-as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

+y the State Department of Corrections,
7} The Defendant is to be placed on the

*ursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a persou convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25:63 (Cr:mmal
Jomestic Viofence ) to sh!p,transporl,possess,or receive a firéarm or ammunition. t

entral Regisay of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant 10 S.C. Code §17-23-135.

. SPECIAL CONDITIONS
TIRESTITUTION: [ ] Oeferred [ Def. Waives Hearing {Jordeces - pTypP ,
fotal: $ plus 20% fée: s days/hours Public Service Employment
*ayment Terms; : S— Obtain GED [
_1 Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— : May serve W/E begining:
Recipient: - _ Substance Abuse Counseling i'?
*Fine: 3 Random Drug/Alcohol testing ¥
§ 14-1:206 {Assessments 107.5 %) _ $ o Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-213{A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) 3100 s /(). () pnts. of beginning
§ 14-1-21 A ¥ 2} { DUI Surcharge) 100 g
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) <12 5 s ‘pmd to Public Defen(fer Ft;md‘
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) 25 7§ Other: . W f
Proviso 47.9 1 Public Def?Prob) §500 T§ Wilel ¥
§ 14-1-212 (Law Entorce. Funding) $25 S - ’
§ 14-1-213 {Drug Court Sutcharge} 150 7§ .
§ 30-21-114{BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 S
§ 56-3-2942¢3) (Vehicle Assessment) Sd0rea T § ~
Proviso 90 $ (SUCIA Surcharge) s5 S LA
3% 10 County:  {if paid in instaliments) S A ) durmg pr obauon
TOTAL S y :

) Presiding Judgg il
Clerk of Court Mig %@m&dﬁ_ﬂ o Judee Code <RI Y
Cowt Rupurter: (\e Sen;ence Date; / :

SCCA217 032011
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The Sta-te of South Carolina
County of Spartanburg

Trey Gowdy, Solicitor

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

by (e

Foreﬁ{rgob of Gran&'JUf}’
VERDICT

SNIHILIN JUYH

—epeOLy |- AON (032

Forbpeqpn(ed Beritiin -
_ Date: a3nd

THE STATE
vS.
JAMIE ANTHONY MAKUPSON
Indictment for

CRIMINAL DOMESTIC VIOLENCE
3" or subsequenit offense

SC Code: 16-25-0020
CDR Code: 3055
Class: Felony

CLERK OF COURT
srmmaumoomgg

BY: e
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e

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ’ INDICTMENT
. ) |
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ),

. . A L .'; -
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on BET &% 7 . the

Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath:

CRIMINAL DOMESTIC VIOLENGE 3"/ SUBSEQUENT OFFENSE

That Jamie Anthony Makupson did in Spartanburg County on or about June 19,
2007, cause physical harm or injury, or offer or attempt to Sause physical harm or injury,
to Leshawn Anderson, a household member or former household member, by punching
her in the face, causing the victim to fear for her safety in thgt the Defendant has t_wq (2)
or more prior convictions for Criminal Domestic Violence, all m vio[ation_ of Code §16-25-

0020, CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, (1976, as amended).

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the stafute in such

(,O/gm}/%/x _

ASEEJANT/SOLICITOR

case made and provided.




el

, wr SOUTH CAROLINA

} {N THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
: EZ }
" o OFSﬂ kcrq ) woicrmenticasew. 07 os L2 50
STATE INDIC caser Cf -6s- 4L -
R . a L K=~ 256773/
AKA: )  Date of Offense: _ ~ 1307
) S.C.Code§: I ~2¢-z0
;_ CORCode# 2088
dle, Zig: e ) SENTENCE SHEET
oLY . SID# )

ln disposition of id.indictment comes now the Delendan} who was [J CONVICTED OF or ) PLEADS
Mﬁ ﬁﬁb«u mand. jur hgﬁs)

m,wola of§ o ~2Z85=ZD ofthe 8'C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # %055
QﬂQ@U?CIOLENT [JVIOLENT  [JSERIOUS [JMOSTSERIOUS (] Mandatosy GPS (CSC [} §17-2545

wiminor 1% or Lewd Act)
The charge E’%ﬂlndﬂed {7 Lesser included Offense, Bﬁﬁm Waives Presentment to Gfa d Jury s & (Defendat initial)

The plea’is: ithout Negoftiations or Recommendation, [] Negohated Sentence, [] Recomme
T .

Sdﬁitor ef ndant

Atlorney for DB fendant

WHEREFORE, the Defepdant is commitied to the §45tate Depariment of Corractions, [JCounty Detention Center,
for a determinate term of ,} efmEaRalyears or [} under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
andlorto payafine of §_- ; provided that upon the semvice of duPNicaeeihs/years and/or payment
of$ ; plus costs and assessinents as applicable*: the balance is suspended with probation for’ /

rgzkEfyears and subject to South Carotina Department of Prabation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of probation, which
‘are incorporated by reference.

~[] CONCURRENT or [ CONSECUT(VE to sentence on; ) _
Eghe Defendant is to be gi e e served pursuant to S.C. Code §24-13-40.10 be calculated and.applied by the State
epattment of Corrections,
[J The Defendant is to be placgd on Central istry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant ta 8.C. Code §1 7»%\
) SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
. [JRESTITUTION: [ Heard, [] Waived, [} Ordered PTUP .
Total: 8 plus 20% fee: $ . daysihours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED
[] set by SCDPPPS ’ Attend Vac. Rehab. .or Job Corp.
. o - May serve WIE beginning , )
Recipient. ' Substance Abuse Counseling T ] ‘
*Fine: 3 Random Drug/Alcohol Testing '
§14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5%) 3 Fine may be pd,in equal, consecutive weekiylmonm!y
§14-1-211{A){1) {(Conv. Surcharge) %100 _:K(QQ ) pmis. of § ] ) ~ beginpi , paWel
§14-1-211{A}(2) (OU1 Surcharge) $100 _§~ , _F 7/ pag ﬁ BlicRefenddr Pk
§56-5.2095 (DUI Assessment) 512 § 7 ATCA ] il
§35.13 (Public Def/Prob) $500 _3 500. B o e '
.§73.3, 1B TP (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 % . ¥V | &L '+
§33.7, 1B TP (Drug Court Surcharge) $100 $ é ; i
§50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 § VA '
§56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) §40/ea § [ ] Appointed PD or appointed other counsel, §35.13 TP _
3% to County (if paid in installmenis) $ .4 Requires $500 be paid to Clerk during probation.
TOTAL 5 3 ] i

B §<ﬁ A ,
u dﬁ PRESIDING JUé

Clerk éf %ﬂ/ Oep%(;}erk Judge Code: 2;7
Court Reporter:

Sentence Date:

SCCAS217 (9/2006) Whire - Clerk Green - Corrections Canary ~ Probation Pink - Defendamt
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The State of South Carolina
County of Spartanburg

James Rice

—Spartanburg Public Safety Department

Trey Gowdy, Solicitor

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

i, CAmD pUTLSm

«  INDERRED

MG 30 200 TERM

ARREST g@gg@ﬁuumas e
H566202 SImnpEtar
T ‘s;ﬂ"'m THE STATE
YE CXRD HADR E] P VS.
TRAYFIC VIOLATIONS ropY '
/f JAMIE ANTHONY MAKUPSON
ACTION OF GRAND JURY
Foreperson of Grand Jury
Date: _
R e e —
V‘ERD'CT Indictment for
CRIMINAL DOMESTIC VIOLENCE
< . SC Code: 16-25-0020, 0040
1S - CDR Code: 685-
Foreperson of Pelit Jury Class misiunc

Date;




. ' STATE Of SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT
)
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG )

aUG 19 2008

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on the

Grand Jurors of Gounty present upon their oath:

CRIMINAL DOMESTIC VIOLENGE 3/ SUB. OFFENSE

That Jamie Anthony Makupson did in Spartanburg County on or about November
2, 2003, cause physical harm or offer or attempt to cause physical 'harm to Leshawn
Anderson, a household member or a former household member, by hitting the victim in
the mouth, cutting her Iib and/or bruising her left elbow by throwing the vict'itﬁ‘ to the
ground, causing the victim to fear for her safety, in that.t_he‘ Defendant has (2) two or
more prior convictions of Criminal Domestic Violence, all in violation of Code §16-25-40,

CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, (1976, as amended).

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in stch

SOVp R R

ASSISTANT SOLICITOR

case made and provided.
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o

,OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

# )

4Ty CM~ M ) INDICTMENT/CASE#:

OY as Cﬂ'?z - 36
_ M/W /Qmuryqq’ AR, ISiaoy
) Date of Offense: T HIBR . '

/Race X 4 : ). S.C.Code§: H-A5 Al by
DOB: g DR Code #: RN AR
Address: {J CASE RESTORED ’
Cily; State, Zip . A/CAL S NS EF L » SENTENCE
DL# _ SioF ) MPLEA []TRIAL

in disposjiion of the sgid jrdictment covs rtw the D_gfendant who was [] CONVICTED OF or [jPLEADS
TO: viaina] Byseshe Rote Sof orSibatef (0-3ye

in yiolation of §_|6~2530 of the 8.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # /) t b 1 3 1 S

NON-VIOLENT (O VIOLENT {1 serious {J MOST SERIOUS [ 17.25-45

The charge is: [ JAs Indicted, [] Lesser included Offense, 13/ Defendant Waives Presentmaent to ya
Wnlhout Negotiations or Recommendataon ] Negotiated Sentence, O Recompfles datxon by the State

R R

Solicitor

WHEREFORE, the Defendapt is commiligeter ,WState Department of Corrections, [ JCounty Detention Center,
for a determinate term of dayfmonths#years or ] under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
andlor to pay a fine of § ; fRrovided that upon the service of& days/months/years and/or payment
of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable”; the balance is suspended with probation for

monthslyears and subject to South Carolma Department of Probahon Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of probation,
‘which are incorporated by reference.
CONCURRENT or [] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code §24-13-40 {q be calculated and applied by the State
ypariment of Corrections.g?

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[T RESTITUTION: [ Heard, ] Waived, ] Ordered PTUP
Totak _$ plus 20% fee:  _$ days/hours Public Service Employment
‘Payment Terms: . . Qbtain GED .
[ Iset by SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Gorp.
May serve W/E beginning
Recipient Substance Abuse Counseling
*Fine: 8 Random DruglAlcohol Testing
§14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5%) % Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly[monthly
§14-1-211{A){1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 _§ pmts. of $ . beginning
§14-1-211{A)(2) (DU} Surcharge) $100 § 3 paid o Public Defender Fund
§56-5-2995 (DU Assessment) $12 % Other:
§ 35.13 (Public.Def/Proby) 3500 §
. §73.3, 1B TP (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 §
§33.7, 1B TP (Drug Court Surcharge) $100 _§
§50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 _§
§56-5-2042(J) (Vehicle Assessment)  $40/ea _§ {0 .Appointed PD or appointed other counsel; §35.13 TP
3% to County (if paid in instaliments) g
. L : :

Requires. $500 be paid to Clgsk dyting probation.
PRESIDING JUDGE %" L7~

Clerk of-Court/ Qeputy Clerk

Judge Code: v ‘%# 1S IA
Sentence Date: PANGL 41N

Court Reporter: G

White - Clerk  Green - Corrections Canary - Probation Pink - Defendant . SCCaA/217 (7/12003)
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3. CARD P OLLED

11749
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6. CHECKED SIGHATURE

CK] ﬁﬁozm . .
PINZ CARD NAD 0@1

ARREST WARRANT numBegeY - [

3864

B

| BHES-42- 376
The State of South Carolina
County of Spartanburg

(07) Holman C. Gossett, Solicitor

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

ter S ¢ 71999

JERM

|

THE STATE
vs.

ACTION OF GRAND JURY'

Jamie Anthony Makupson

erson of Grand- Jury

VERDICT
Indictment for '
INTIMIDATE A WITNESS

SC Code: 16-9-340
CDR Code:

grson of Pelit Jury

Class

After being fully advised as to my
legal-rights, | hereby waive prasentment
to the Grand Jury.

)’ﬁefendant,

hereby appear in my own pr per person and blead
guilty to the within indictment or to

i—

)’Xefendant

Witness:

C.C.C. PLS. AND G.S.
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT

- COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG )
\

JUK £3 109

the

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on

Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County 4present upon thejr oath:

~ INTIMIDATE A WITNESS

- That Jamie Anthony Makupson did in Spartanburg County on or about
January 29, 1999, threaten and intimidate one LeShawn Anderson, a victim
concerning a pending criminal charge of CRIMINAL DOMESTIC
VIOLENCE, in the discharge of her duty as such, by sending a threatening
letter to the victim in the mail, in violation of §16-9-340, CODE OF LAWS
OF SOUTH CAROLINA, (1976), as amended. '

Against the peace and dignity of the Stat

made and provided.

T R R
RS 4
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SID#: 6}i(PLEA O TRIAL

[n disposition of the said indictment comes-now the Defendant who was [J CONVICTED OF O}fé PLEADS

TO: Mﬂ« PURRILL TS 4 ) -

i violationof § _{(¢ -C1-0 :SHE of the $.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # %__l “ /s / _l___
&NON-VIOLENT [0 VIOLENT {0 SERIOUS {1 MOST SERIOUS  [J17-25-45

e charge is: O AsIndicted, [3 Lesser Included Offense, [ Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury.
The plea is: OWithout Negotiations or Recommendation, [J Negotiated Sentence, } Recomme 3k

"ec., o Mot
“ SohizE; Defendant

/ ‘SOUTH CAROLINA )} IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

INDICTMENTICASE#:

J /E v, ) _94_-cs. b 3‘1 LY

J&M\e— an ) A/WiH: F

AKA: ; Date of Offense: /~ 7’ 9

Race: 7 ) S.C Code §: fo =O09-Q3%>

o g CDR Code #: 2/1) /.8 ]

DL#: ) SENTENCE
)

. WHEREFORE, the\Defendant is committed to the [J State Department of Corremons DConnty Detention Ceuter
for a determinate terth of & da)slman&s/yeam ZlunderthecYonthful OffenderAct notio-ciecend

of $ " ——— plus costs and assessments as apphcablc"

W The Defendant is to be given credit for ____1 0 segs/months jail time.
/ CONCURRENT or [0 CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: __
SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

CRESTITUTION [0 Heard, O Waived, [J Ordered — o
Total: $  plus 20% fee § : days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: ., _ Obtan GED _

[Iset by SCDPPPS : Attend Voc Rehab. or Job Corps

' May serve W/E beginning
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling
“Random Drug/Alcohol Testing _____

S U 3 Firig may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/ monthiy
§ 14-1-206 - Assessmerits 100%.........oe.... $ pts.of§ ___ beginning
§ 14-1-211 - SUICHAIGE.cosvcemserriusnsrerenmssanees $ ~§__ paid to Public Defender Fund.
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IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSION¢

)
TMENT/CASE#:
?’ OF i@{%ﬁbwa/ ; INDIC
/Zi) rAQ ) 93 -GS- qg\ (DO ‘3 5
m{c Y AW A

; Date of Oﬁ'ense
Race' ' ) S.C. Code § : ‘ T
DOB: 5 . 6L
SSN: ; CDR Code#: _© /G /¥ /S
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SID#: ﬂPLEA [ TRIAL

In disposition of the sald indictment comes now the Defendant who {1 CONVICTED OF or Rﬁ PLEADS

to:_ (| rimindl q&)%'hc \/m\mc& 3

in violation of § “ - 023" O \\ﬁ of the 8.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code #_0 /L (§ / S
NON-VIOLENT O VIOLENT -~ [J SERIOUS [ MOST SERIOUS  []17-25-45

» charge is: AsIndicted, [ Lesser Included Offense, U1 Defendant Waj jes Presentment to Grand Jury.
The plea is: [OWithout Negotiations or Recommendation, [ Negotiated Sentence, w;ecommndﬁb the State.
3 = orfao

)/
Q [q" "¢
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FORM 4  (12/87)
F626205
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT FOR RESISTING ARREST

)
COUNTY OF__Spartanburpg )

100 95 1997

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on ’

the Grand Jurors of __Spartanburg County present upon their oath:

COUNT ONE — RESISTING ARREST

That Jamie Anthony Makupson did in __Spartanhurg County
on or about ___ September 9, 1997 , knowingly and wilfully obpose and/or resist,
the effortsof ... L.¥, Lindsey . ., a law enforcement officer of

lhié State, to make a lawful arrest of the said defendant in violation of §16-9-320(a), Code of Laws
of South Carolina, (1976), as amended.

COUNT TWO — RESISTING ARREST — ASSAULT ON OFFICER

That did in County
on or about , knowingly and wilfully assault,
beat or wound one . , a law enforcement officer of

this State, while resisting the efforts of the said officer 10 make a lawful arrest of the said defend-
ant, in violation of §16-9-320(b), Code of Laws of South Carolina, (1976), as amended.
COUNT THREE — RESISTING ARREST — DEADLY WEAPON

That seventeen years of age or older did

in County on or about i .., wilfully
and knowingly resist the efforts of a law enforcement officer of this State, to make a law{ul arrest
with the use and threat of use of a deadly weapon, to wit: ______, against the officer, when
the said defendant was in possession and/or claimed to be in possession of the said deadly weapon.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and

provided.

- SOLICITO
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of __ XTI, ’ No. 97-&5- ¢r. s37/
stald @f
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X Whereas the sbove nemed defeadant has been charged with violating the cgndigigns of
arobation ordered on 5 5 .19 3&; in the Court of General Sessions of .én {.
County as set farth in & warrant or citation fFiled herein.

Atter hearing the svidence and being duly advised, ! find the defendant has violatsd
ene or more of the conditions of supervision as get Forth in the affidevit filed harein and
dated !Ji-[? , 19 ¢ @ copy of which is incorporated by reference,

EEEQA 1T IS ORDERED that the, suspegdsd seatence be rsvofed and thezj:;ve named defondant be
required to serve é: @/s:wa—of the . - ears sentence identified
above, and/or pay \ ;3 the defanddnt is not to be reinstated an

probation. This gction Is taken In the (presence/abasence) of the defendant.

S | IT 1S ORDERED that the suspended sentence be revoked and the above named defendant be
required to serve - montha/years of the origineal . months/years
sentance (snd/or) pay % ; thereupon t¢ ba reinstated on probation
as provided in the sentence identifled asbove and subject to the conditians get forth
therein and not inconsistent with this order, 7This sction i's taken in tha
{presence/sbsence ) of the defendant.

1 IT IS ORDERED thet the suspended sentence bes revoked and the asbove named dofendant be
reguirad to serve months/years (and/or) pay $ ; the defendant
is not tu bes reinstufed on probation. This actiaon i§ taken in Ehe (ﬁtasence/abagnca) of

the defendant,

==}~ T1he defendant has previouely served ,—3 s/.;'m.a.:.s_on this seatence,

I ] IT IS OROERED that the sbove named dafendant is continued on probation as provided for
in the sentsnce identifled above and subject ta the conditions set Forth therein and no
inconsistent with this ordexr. This action is taken in the (presence/abagnce) pof the
defendant,’ o Lt

= Additional Conditions ordecred by the Court:

»,

<2fx£af$>‘ 7r3t;3. SJanJ~C/é1 _S?r\hx /3?-'51-53?, :

86

OHOMHYH MYVK
hG ¢ Hd B2 Nr ¢

This_jZF; day of

4

BN . . . : N
You are hereby advised that uander the law the Court may et any time revoke or madif)
any condition of this probation; impose any lewful epecial conditions it deems propar; or_itl
extend your period of probstion not to exceed five (3) years. At sny tisme within the period ¢
your probation, the Court may, if it sees fit, impose any judgwent and sentence it might have
imposed in ths firs ance .,

) This is to certify that I have v
Conditigna set out therein. 1 agree to comply «i :
probation order identified abave during the periad of, my

have had res : rder and the
‘Such conditions and the canditione of nmy
atian. ! have received 8 copy @

this court ordesr snd my sentence identified sbove. ' ~
/"-. . "\,M_‘
Witnesaed by: Siéned:
Probstioner
Signed this . day of . _ .19 , at , SC.
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

RESPONDENT, CASENO: 2017—CP-42-1808

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) R _
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) IN THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
. | ) |
| )
JAMIE A. MAKUPSON )
APPLICANT, )
)
Vs. ) PROPOSED ORDER GRANTING
) POST-CONVICTION RELIEF
)
)
)
)

This matter comes before the Court by way of Mr. Makupson's application of post
conviction relief filed May 22, 2017, alleging violations of his rights to due process and
assistance of ’COﬁnsel in his pro se probation revocation. A .Conditiogal Order of
Dismissal was filed January 10, 2018. In response to the Conditional Order of Dismissal
the Applicant submitted a reply arguing that genuine issues of material fact existed and
the PCR action proceeded to a full hearing February 22, 2018, on the issue of whether the
Applicant's right to assistance of counse] guaranteed by the Sixth and Fourteenth

_ Amendments of the US Cons_titut}ion was violated:

At the hearing the Applicant testified on his own behalf ané Agent Hanna Price,
with Spartanburg County Probation, Pardon, .and Parole, testified on _beﬁalf of the State.
The court had before it a copy of the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court Records,
Applicant's records from South Carolina Dgpartinent of Corrections, the probation
violation ﬁeari‘ng transcript, the Respondent’s Application, the Conditit_mal Order of
Dismissal, the Applicant's Reply to the Conditional Order of Dismissal, the Notice of |
Probation Violation Hearing and Acknowledgement of Notice (Court Exhibit 1), Notice

of Rights (State's Exhibit 1), and Violation Report-(Applicant's Exhibit 1).




106

PROCEDURAL HISTORY .

On June -1'7_, 2016; Mr. Makupson appeared pro se before the Hono'rab_l,e R. Kei_th
Kelly for a probation violation hearing and received a revécaﬁon in full of five years
which he is serving in the South Carolina Department of Corrections.

SUMMARY OF TESTIMONY AT PCR
Applicant's Testimony

Mr. Makupson testified that he did not understand that he was facing revocation
when he went before Judge Kelly. He said he asked for a new agent and his agent told
him that he could ask the Judge. He took issue with the allegations that,had’béen
presented by his agent in his violation hearing and denied reviewirx_g.his.'vioiation report
or knowledge of the Ag\ent's recommendation going into the hearing.  He admitted he had
prior convictions and had been on probation before. Mr, Makupson stated he went

* through the sixth grade, had his GED, and attended college. He said he would have
wanted an attorney and thought he §vould have benefitted from an attomey to répresent
him at his probation violation hearing.
| Agent's Testimony
Agent Price was called to the stand on behalf of the State and testified that Mr.
Makupson was a difficult probationer who had violated his probation mpast cases; She
testified in detail about his violations. She stated she had notiﬁéd h1m of the allegations,
his hearing date and his right to an attorney at the proceedings. She referred to the Notice
Form, Citation and Notice of Rights in the céurt records and entered as exhibits. (Court
- Ex. 1 & State Ex. 1) She agreed thrat the violation report showed her recommendation

was two years revocation and was signed by her supervisor, but stated that she had not




pointed that out to the sentencing judge because by the time of the hearing she no lqugr
agreed with that recommendation. (Api)licanfc_*s Ex.1)
FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

This Couirt has reviewed the record in its entirety and has heard and weig’hed the
testimony at the post-conviction relief hearing. In accordance with S.C. Code Ann, § 17-
27-80 this court finds that the probation violation in this case proceeded without a valid
waiver of the right to counsel guaranteed by the Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments of the
UsS Constitvution.'v -

The transcript of the probation violation hearing clearly shows Mr. Makupson was
not advised of his right to colmsel and there was no inquiry into whether there was a
knowing and intelligent waiver of that right. Mr. Makupson informed the court that he
had not seen the violation report and did not know the allegations agéinst him. Thel
probation agent then states that Mr. Makupson told her he didn't feel like getting an
attorney and would represent himself. (Revocation p.3) There isno further mention of
the right to counsel and no.inquiry to determine whether Mr. Makupson was adequately
informed of his right to Acou_n‘s,él or warned of the dangers of self-representation. Further,
Mr. Makupson was not advised that he could invoke his Sixth Amendment right and
request the jcouft appoint an attorney to represent him.

"The Sixth and Fourteenth Amendments of our Constitution g@aﬁté;a'that a
person brought to trial in any state or federal court must be afforded the right to fhe
assistance of counsel before:[s]he can be validly convicted and punished by
imprisonment.” Stare v, Iiko)nps’on, 355 8.C. 255,261, 584 S.E.2d 131, 134

(Ct.App.2003) (citing Faretta v. California, 422 U.S. 806, 807, 95 S.Ct. 2525, 45
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L.Ed.2d 562 (1975)). Our courts have fouﬁd that, "The right to counsel attaches in
probation revocation hearings." Salley v. State, 306 S.C. 213, 215, 410 S.E.2d 921, 922
(1991). Further, "Actual or constructive denial of the assistance of counsel altogether 1s
legally presumed to result in prejudice.” McKnight v. State, 320 S.C: 356, 358, 465
S.E.2d 352, 353 (1995) (quoting Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 692, 104 S.Ct.
2052, 2067, 80 L.Ed.2d 674, 696 (1984)).

While one can waive their right to counsel, "[t]he courts indulge every reasonable
presumption against waiver of fundamental constitutional rights, and do not presume
acquiescence in the loss of fundamental rights.” Thompson, 355 S.C. at 262, 584 S.E.2d
131, 134 citing Johnson v. Zerbst, 304 U.S. 458, 464, 58 S.Ct. 1019, 1023, 82 L.Ed.
1461, 1466 (1938); Pitts v. North Caroling; 395 F.2d 182, 188 (4th Cir.1968). The trial
Jjudge must determine whether there is a knowing and intelligent waiver by the defendant.
State v. Dixon, 269 S.C. 107, 236 S.E.2d 419 (1977) (citing Johnson v. Zerbst, 304 U.‘S.
458, 58 8.Ct. 1019, 82 L.Ed. 1461 (1938)). To assure a knowing and intelligent waiver
of the right to counsel, the record must demonstrate that the court advised the accused of _
his right to counsel and adequately warned of the dangers of self representation. Faretta
v. California, 422 U.S. 806,95 S.Ct. 2525, 45 L.Ed.2d 562 (1975). The record in this
case does not comply with Faretra.

_ The State argqes'th'at the signed forms titled Notice of Probation Vi\olati_on
Hearing and Acknowledgement of Notice (Coutt Exhibit 1) and Notice of Rights (State's
Exhibit 1) fulfill the_cctim.rt'__s, obligationé under the first prong of Faretta: This is not the
finding of this Court. The law is clear that afier notice is established there must be a

determination whether there was a knowing and intelligent waiver by the



accused. Thompson, 355 S.C. at 261-62, 584 S.E.2d at 134-35. The Applicant's signature '

on the South Carolina Probation; Pardon, and Parole's Notice of Rights form does not
amount to a valid waiver of his right to counsél, especially as in this case where Mr.
Maku’péon signed the Notice of 'Rights,but-c_l_i_gi not sign the Waiver of Right to have
appointed éounsel at the bottom of that form. _(State's»Eﬂnibit 1). As in State v. Brannon,
this record gives no assurance that Mr. Makupson's waiver of counsel is knowing and
intelligently made and contains ho findings on the matter. State v. Brannon, 407 8.C.

293, 755 S.E.2d 117 (2014).

\

~ Mr. Makupson's case is distinguishable from State v. Bryant because in that case .

the record showed the court informed the probationer of his right to a lawyer and there
was an affirmative verbal waiver of the right to éouhsel followed with the further
. instruction that the right to cgpnsel could beinvoked at any tlme State v. Bryant, 383
S.C. 410, 680-S.E.2d 11 (S.C. A‘pp,\. é009)j The issue there was whether after satisfying
the ﬁrst prong, the faih;r_eto ~spcciﬁc_ally‘address the dang'e,rs and disadvantages of
appearing pro se as 'requi‘rgd- by Farerta’s second prong could support a knowing and
voluntary waiver. To assist in this inquiry into the second prong, the court looked into
ten factors to determine whether the accused fully understood the dangers of self-
representation based on her _badégroﬁnd or being appraised of her rights by some other
source: Id. at 14. |

Here, Mr. Makupson was not givéri notice-of his right to cougsgl as required by
‘the‘ﬁrst prong of Faretta. Theréfore, it is not necessary to engage mthe ;tcn part inquiry
into to whether his background, education and physical and mental heaith_: gave him an

understanding of the dangers of self-representation as re(juired in the second prong of
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Faretta. HdweVe‘r, ‘given his test_‘imony, demeanor at the hearih:g, and educational
background this court is ﬁbt convinced Mr. Makupson understood or appreciated the
dangers of self-representation. |
CONCLUSION

Based on the above, this Court finds fghat the probatiOnyiolation in this case
proceeded without a valid waiver of the ﬁght‘fo counsel guaranteed by the Sixth and
Fourteenth Amendments. of the '(‘}S Constitution. |
IT IS THEREFORE THE ORDER OF THIS COURT that the applicant's

revocation and sentence be vacated and his case remanded to General Sgs's’ic)p’s. If the

State chooses to appeal this Order; I retain jmigdimion to address the ‘gppgal_fbbnd'.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED this _____ day of 2018,

Judge Michael G. Nettles
Presiding Judge
Seventh Judicial Circuit

» South Carolina.




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA iN_THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ., SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT ~
Jamie A. Makupson, #281398, 2017-CP-42-1808
Applicant, _
ORDER OF DISMISSAL
V. WITH PREJUDICE
. .
State of South Carolina, & E
T =X
S B>
Respondent. " e
w o
2
> 2=

3

This master comes before this Court by way of an application for post—convictionrgeliegp |

e

™ -
filed by Jamic A. Makupson (Applicant) on May 22, 2017. The State (Respondent) m?de,itgetu‘rr_i

' requesting an evidentiary hearing be held. An evidentiary hearing into the matter was convened on
February 22, 2018 at the Spartanburg County Courthouse. Appticant was present and represented by
Susannah Ross, Esquire, Valerie C}’grcia Giovanoli, Esquire, of the Office of the Attorney General
represented Respondent.

At the hearing, Applicam testified on his own bebalf, Probation Agent .Hénna Price
{"Agent™) (Cgunsel) also testified. This Court had before it the records of the Spnrranbu_rg County
Clerk of Couﬁ regarding the subject convictions, Applicant's records from the South Carolina
Department of Corrections; the probation revacation transcript, Applicant's probation records, the
PCR application, Respondent's return and motion to dismiss, the signed conditional order of
dismissal, and Applicant's reply to the conditional order of dismissal,

| PROCEDURAL HISTORY

Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant 10
o;der.s of commitment of the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court. 'In May 2013, the Spartanburg
County Grand Jury indicted Applicant for_ assault and battery, first degree (2013-GS-42-2321).

1of13
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Applicant was subsequently indicted in June 2013 for assault and battery, second degree (2013-GS-
42-2919) and threatening life, person, or family of public official, teacher, or principal (2013-G8-42-
2920).

Robert B, Hall, Esquire, represented Applicant, Alexandria Denise Lyles, Esquire, prosecuted
the ¢ase. On Junc 28, 2013, Applicant plcaded guilty as indicted to all charges before the Honordble
J. Mark Hayes, II. Pursuant to a negotiated sentence, Judge Hayes sentenced Applicant to
imprisonment for concurrent terms of ten years for z;ssault and battery, first degree, provided that
upon the service of five years, the balance was suspended with probation for five years, three years
for assault and battery, second degree, and five years for threatening the life, person or family of
public official, teacher, ar principal, Applicant did not appeal his conviction or sentence.

Ori April 13,2016 an probation citation was issued for Applicant for violations E{ prohét'ioq,,

The affidavit stated that Applicant was to be arrested for the following reasons;

18 Jdon
V S2uvig

1. Failare to report as instracted having missed an office visit;

2. Failure to refrain from changing residence without prior consent of the A_ger@’;’

3. Failure to refrain from the use of controlled substances having tested posifive tg T
m

cocaine; and opiates on 3/8/16 and 3/15/16; 2 o £5

4, Failure to work diligently at a lawful occupation, having never provided the Agentvampﬁpf
of employment, or proof of any effort to obtain employment; -

5. Failure to pay supervision foe being $600 in arrears and having never made a payment on this
account since beginning probation;

6. Filure to pay court fine being $180 in arrears and having never made a payment on this

account'since beginning probation;

. Failure to pay one time $20 drug test fee;

. Failure to follow the advice and instructions of the supervising Agent;

. Failure to comply with special condition of anger management counseling.

D OO N3

On June 17, 2016, the Applicant appeared before the Honorable R. Keith Kelly for a
probation revocation hearing, Judge Kelly revoked Applicant's probation and required him to'serve

his remaining five year sentence, Applicant did not appeal his probation revocatien or sentence.
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ALLEGATIONS
Inhis application for post-conviction relief, Applicant alleges that he is bein_g‘hcid in custody
unlawfully for the following reasons:

. “Did the Court of General Sessions have subject matter jurisdiction to revoke Applicant’s
probation?”
a. “According to the revocation order it states that a-citation dated 4-4-16 was issued. It

also state that, ‘after hearing the evidence and being duly advised, in the presénce of .
the defendant (now Applicant), I find the above named defendant has violated the
following conditions of probation. ... This statement would have us believe that
citation with an affidavit was issucd in this case, when in fact, there was no ¢itation
or affidavit issued before hearing or served not presented to the Applicant in this
case, Applicant has never seen a citation nor warrant up to this ddte, Witkout the
citation or probation warrant rendered this court is without subject matter jurisdiction )
and the revocation is void.” )

2. “Did Applicant waive his right to counsel at the probation revocation heanng"” re
& “In this case, Applicant had fo proceed pro se as no counsel was appéﬁxted@ 7,
represent nor were the required procedures or steps.taken by the coujo agere 20: '~7’

that Applicant was making a free and voluntary watver of his right fgXounsel aﬂ‘d =F

that he understood the dangers of self-representation.” - ST

SUMMARY OF PCR HEARING

wawa
‘VRY 92

]

At the start of the hearing, Respondent requested a ruling on its-motion to"ﬁisma',u Wsiith'
. regard to Appiicém-’s first issue, Respondent argued that the circuit court obviotisly bad subject
matter jurisdiction to revoke Applicant’s probation and citing to State v. Gentry, 363 8.C. 93, 610

S.E.2d 494 (2005). Respondent also argued because it is clear from the record the circyit courthad

jurisdiction, theré is no-genuine issue of material fact requirinig a hearing and therefore, Respondent

is entitled to summary judgment. S.C. Code Ann. § 17-27-70(c) (Court may “grant a motion by
gither party-for summary disposition of [an] application when it appeats from the pleadinigs ... that
there is no genuine issue of material fact and the moving party isentitled to judgment as a matter of
law.") As to Applicant’s second issue, Respondent argued that based on State v. Bryant, 383 S.C.
410, 680 S.E.2d 11 (2009), thcre was o genuine issue of material fact to necessitate & hearing and
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Respondent was entitled to Jjudgment as a matter of law based solely on the record before the Court,
Respondent also admitted Applicant's certified convictions from Spartanburg County and a “Notice
of Probation Violation Hearing and. Acknowledgment of Rights” and “*Notice of Rights” (referred to
hcrem collectively as “the Notices™), as Court’s. Exhibit I and State’s exhibit 1, respectively, in
support of her argument.

Respondent countered and distinguished Bryant from the instant matter, because in Bryant,
the defendant was informed on the record of his right'to an attorney, whereas in this case, Applicant
was not advised of neither his right to an attorney rior the dangers of proceeding pro se. Applicant

also cited State v. Brannon, 407 8.C. 293, 7558.E2d 117 (2014), and State v. Moo, 199@(3 641

o Py “"(‘ }
732 8.E.2d 871 (2012). g =
o o
ML N
This Court denied Respondent’s motion to dismiss and allowed Applicant tofrocd®d
o
hearing 1o prove his allegations. g ;
Mo EE
L Applicapt testified to the following: © o

Applicant testified went 10 report to his probation agent and change his address, however
when he arrived, Agent was revoking his probation, Agentaccused him of failing two drug tests, but
Applicant denied ever having two drug tests, Applicant admitted he failed t-;xe March 15 drug test.
Applicant deni¢d he ever missed a reporting visit,

Applicant testified that during his revocation hearing, the judge asked himif he had 4 Jawyer,

but Agent jumped in'and answered the quesuon without allowing Applicant to respond. Applicant

also testified he had made numerous attcmpts to gain lawful emiployment, but rather Agentdid not

help him seek employment. Applicant also testified he gave Agent copiés of job applicat‘ions he had

filled out and submitted. Applicant testified he completed anger management while in the
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Department of Corrections and gave Agent the proof of completion. Applicant completed the 6%
grade, has received a GED, and has attended college.
I Agent testified to the following:
Agent has been working as a probation agent since August af 2013, Agent explained the
reasons for each violation:
Agenttestified she had a reporting visit with Applicant on October 6, 20153t S!htchﬁn §%&
advised him his next reporting dale would be December 1, 2015. However, Applmnt Ele&

report that day. Agent does not genera!iy violate for missihg a reporting appomtmeﬁ un}ggs xg 1s"

:k a—
compounded by other violations or it becomes a: recumng problem. 98 ‘5?

On April 30, 2014, Agent made contact with Applicant’s grandmother and aunt vshoclawed a
{he residence Applicant had provided to probation as being histesidence: His grandmother and aunt
informed Agent that their residence was Applicant’s mailing address, but that he:did not live there
and was not welcomed there. When Agent' gonfronted Applicant about this issue, Applicant
repeatedly told her he‘liyed tﬁcre, Later, Applicant gave Agent another address, At thistime, as well
as other office visits, Applicant became aggressive and disrespectful and had to be escorted out of
the office., |

Agent testificd Applicant failed His initial drug test taken on March 8, 2016. Applicant
informed her he would pass a second drug test if given a week. Agent drug ;_estéd him a week Jater
on March 15, 2016, and Applicant failed again. Applicant did not pay for either drug test,

Agent testified that despite her giving Applicant resources 10 help find lawful employment,
Applicant never obtaincd lawful employment nor provide her with proof of any attempts 10 seek
lawful employment. Agent also testified Applicant informed her that he turned down job oﬁgrs from

Lear and Excel because of jransportation concerns.

50f13
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Agent testified Applicant never paid any of his probation fees, court fees, or drug test fee.
Agcnt does not viclate offenders solely on morietary obligations, However, Applicanthad violated
in many ways and therefore, Agent was required, by her office’s policy, to include all violations.

Agent also testified Applicant never completed his court ordered anger management
counseling, Agentwas aware Applicant had completed an anger management course required inthe
Department of Corrections, but informed him that he was also required fo take the anger
management course outside of the Department of Corrections.

Agent testified that Applicant’s demeanor was angry, disrespectful, loud, and aggressive on
multiple occasions reguiring both a meeting with her supervisor as well as being escorted outof the
building. Agentalso testified-that Applicant had been on probation five prior times to this instant
probation term and had violated probation every time. Counse testificd she made a mistake on the
probation records in the section for “Agent’s recommendations.” Her recommendation was nevera

2

“nartial revocation of 2 years, toll time form [sic] date of Warrant. Continue Probahon Smef.}
£,

S =
satisfies supervision fee arrearages” as indicated on the probation revocation. g‘ _ g’
o
5

Agent testified she served Applicant with State’s Exhibit 1, the Notices, on A__ggnl 13.20}6._‘

Agent testified she witnessed Applicant sign both documents. Agent also tesuﬁeMppl,@ant alm
showed up o her office a few days before the violation hearing thinking he was scheduled for court

Agent had to inform him the hearing was the following day at the courthouse, Agem also asked
Applicant if he had gotten an attorney, 1o W vhich Applicant tald her no. Agent asked him why and
Applicant shrugged his shoulders. Agent ‘asked him if he didn’t because he didn’t \'feel like it, to
which Applicant responded “yes Agent asked Applicant if he was going to represent himself, to
which Applicant stated “yes.” Agent had her case notes with herand was usi'n; themto assist her in

testifying.
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
This Court has had the opportunity to review the record in its entirety and hias heard the
testimony at the post-conviction relief hearing. This Court has had the opportunity to observe the
witnesses presented at the hearing, and has weighed their testimony and credibility accordingly.
Beloiv are the {indings of fact and conclusions of law as required pursuant to 8,C. Code Ann. §17-
27-80(2017). Applicant has failed to prove by a preponderance of the evidence that the circuit court
incked subject matter jurisdiction to revoke his probation or that he did not knowingly and

voluntarily waive his right to probation revocation counsel.

8 3d0H W
< VW B0

Subject matter jurisdiction

This Court finds Applicant has failed to pfove the circuit court lacked gbjéctimag
Jurisdietion to reveke his probation. An Applicant may challenge the subject maﬁcr@tisqg{ioéfiz
the trial court and such a claim is one that may be raised at any time. See Brown v. State, 343 S“C
© 342, 540 S.E.2d 846 (2001), overruled in part by Gentry, 363 S.C. 93, 610 S.E.2d 494 (2003).

However, “[clircuit courts obviously have subject matter jurisdiction to try ctiminal matters®

Gentty, 363 8.C. 93; Seealso 8.C. Const. Art. V, § 7. Since Applicant was sentenced to probation

after his guilty plea in the circuit court, the circuit court had subject matter jurisdiction to hear his
subsequent probation violation matter. Applicant must present evidence that his casc is of some
class over which the circuit céurt does not have the awthority to preside. Applicant claimis that there
was no citation or affidavit issued regarding his arrest for probation violations. The probation records
include the probation citation issued on April 13, 2016 with an affidavit signed by Agent, on April 4,
2016 and served on April 13, 2016. Additionally, Agent testified Applicant became apgressive so
she gave him a copy of the citation and had him escorted out of the office {See also, notatior in

probation records). Therefore, Applicant has failed to present any evidence to refute the record that

7of 13
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Dy
‘determining whether the defendant had sufficient background to waive counsel or wg’app@ed T

he was sérved with the probation citation and affidavit in addition to failing to show that the
probation revocation court did not have the authority to preside. Therefore, this Court denies and
dismisses this allegation.
Wai v& of, prqbqtian revocation counsel

This Court finds Applicant knowingly and voluntarily waived his right to counsel at his
probation revocation hearing: In criminal cases, defendants have the right to -waive counsel;
however, the trial court has discretion to detetmine if that waiver wasa knowing and iﬂleﬂigem
waiver. State v. Bryant, 383 §,C. 410, 414, 680 8.E.2d 11, 13 (2009) {citing State v. Thompson, 355
8.C. 261-62, 384 S.E.28 at 134.35 (2003)), Specifically, in addition to reviewing the entire record,
the court also fooks 1o ten factors in order to determine if the defendant has sufficient background to
understand the dangers of self-representation, Bryant, 383 8.C, 410,415,680 8.E2d 11, 13 (2009).
Such factors include, but not limited to, whether the defendant was previously involved in criminal
trials, whether he knew the nature of the charge and of the possible penaltics, and whe‘ther he knew

he would be required to comply with trial rules of procedure, Id. This analysis atds _fge c@ m,
I '

T

In regard to walving counsel in a probation revocation hearing, the court f%t It,\, s t&the

}/3 tf

his rights by another source. Id,

exchange between the court and the probation agent during the hearing, 1d. at 416, 680 S, E 2d it 14.

Ifthe court does not explicitly address the specific dangers and disadvantages of proceeding proseas

required by Ferretta*, the Court notes that the next inquity is whether the defendant signed a

probation notice by his probation officer, acknowledging in part that he may have an aitorney

represent him and if he could not afford one,.one would be appointed on his behalf, Bryant, 3838.C.

| Fargtta v. California, 422 U.S. 806, 95 8. Ct. 2325 1975y
8of13




at 410, 416-17, 680 S.E.2d 11, 14. The probation notice typically states that it is the defendant's
responsibility to ensure that his or her witnesses and attomney appear at the hearing, 1d. In Bryant,
the Supteme Court held that though the court did not explicitly warn the defendant of the dangers
and disadvantage; of sclf-rt::presentaﬁon, Bryant knowingly and voluntarily waived her right 1o an
attorney by signing a probation notice prior to the hearing informing her of her rights. The Court
also found that because of her extensive experience in the-criminal justice system, speciﬁcaﬂy in
probation court, as well as previous representation for the, u‘nde_rlying charges, she had @ sufficient
background to waive counsel and was apprised of her rights by some othc.r source. 1d at 417, 680
SE2dat 14,

This case is identical to Bryant. On April 13,2016, Applicant signed a“Notice of Probation
Violation Hearing and Acknowledgerment of Rights” and a “Notice of Ri ghts,‘: informing him of his

rights. This was over two months before the revocation hearing on June 17, 2016, Thisnotice

. x e
expressly stated that he may have an attomney represent him, and that if lie could not affgrd o@on*éi’

;]
would be appointed for him. In fact, the notice contained the exact verbiage as thajtg th 3
o~ o [

case. Theresponsibility fell on Applicant to make arrangements to hite an attorney tg?appg at
M~ s €
<

probation revocation hearing, if desired, as acknowledged in the signed probation &’tiee,\_,
=)

LI,
-

e,
W

i

1n addition to the Notices signed by Applicant, the record demonstrates Appliéant‘s.ex(eﬁgivg
familiarity with the criminal justice system, including extensive experience with probation. Further,
Agent testified credibly that they had a discussion about Applicant getting an attorney to which
Applicant nonchalantly indicated he did not feel Jike getting an attomney and was goihg tp_rcprcsent
himself. Applicant also testified he had a {or some) college education.

Applicaits reliance on Brannon and Moote is misplaced. In Brannon, ‘Brannon violated

probation for a number of unsatisfied monetary obligations and failing to “fq}ldw his probation

90of I3 -
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agent’sadvice.” Brannon, 407 S.C.at 295,755 8.E.2dat 118. Brannon signed a waiver form which

indicated his decision to proceed without counsel and waived his right to.a probation revocation
hearing. Without a hearing, the circuit court revoked Brannon’s probation and sentenced him to five
months’ imprisonment. Id, The Court of Appeals stated “the absence of any finding whatsoever”
that Brannon knowingly and voluntarily waived his right to a hearing and an attorney was troubling
and remanded the matter for a determination of whether Brannon had knowingly and voluntarily
walved his right to a probation revocation hearing andan attorney, Id, 407'5.C. 21296, 755 SE2d at
118.

As a threshold matter, this Court notes Bryant is not only miore analogous to the case at bar,

but also carries more authoritative weight from the Supreme Court, whereas Brannon is very

distinguishable and was decided by the Court of Appeals. Additionally, Brannon signed a form
waiving his right to an attorney and a hearing, essentially relinquishing all rigﬁt_s 10 even challenge
the violationis with which he ad been‘accused. Brannon did not have a hearing or an opportunity to

appear before the circuit court regarding the revocation of his probation. Itisalso wonlhuoti:g;ha'
. ]
e -
all of Brannon's violations were of a monetary nature. In this case, Applicant dld@pcg’orxv 2
: 2 :
Na

probation revocation hearing in which he admitted some of his violations and dcmed..’;omem Alg

‘\..

: D Z
Applicant’s violations were much more extensive than Brannon’s and involved ﬁé‘re t§| Jua,g
.N ] L

3%
- - o
Q0

monetary violations.

Secondly, there was nothing in the record 1o support Brannon waived his rights otherthan a
signed pre-printed waiver. Here, the record shows Applicant was apprised of bis right 10 an attorney
and the dangers ’ of proceeding pro se by his probation agent through the-signed Notices, that
Applicant has an extensive cfiminal history and experience with probation, that A_pplica.m possessed

sufficient cducation to waive his right to counsel, and Applicant even told Agent he did not get an
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attorney because -he did not feel like it.

In Moore, the issne was whethet trial counsel was ineffective for strategically deciding to
waive Moore’s right to-a jury trial and instead opt-for a bench trial. Moore testified in his PCR. that
he did not knoW, he was going to have a bench trial and wanted a jury trial. The Court found the
de('cnda,nt’vs waiver of his constitutional right to a jury trial was unsupported by the record, in that
there was no colloquy with the trial court or trial counsel and that triat counsel did n(-)t recallif he
definitely explained the differences between a jury and bench trial or whether Applicant understood
the distinetion. Additionally, Moore had only completed the seventh grade and could not read or
write.

Mogre is not conirolfing in this case as it i distinguishable from the éase af bar for many
reasons. The first being the issue was whether Moore’s attorney was ineffective in advising Moore
about his constitutional right to a jury trial and the distinction between a jury and bench trail. The
issue in this case was Applicant’s knowing and voluntary waiver of probation c‘ouLnsel. Secondly,

there was nothing in the record that indicated Maore made 2 knowing or voluntary waiver@fhisght,

s B
to a jury trial. Here, as discussed mare fully above, there is ample evidenice of a l;%ow@ and’7

-

voluntary waiver of hisright to probation counsel if the record: Lastly, Moore was signiﬁcaﬂy I
x X
§ <
. Do
Because the record shows Applicant was apprised of iis right to an attorney and R dangers

educated than Applicant.

AT

of proceeding pro se by his probation agent _through the signed Notices, Applicarit’s extensive
criminal histéry and experience with probation, and Applicant possessed sufficient education to
waive. his right to counsel, this Court finds Applicant made a knowing and voluntary waiver of his
;ight 10 probation counsel,

Lastly, this Court notes that Agent™s testimony, based on her extensive case notes, was more
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oredible than that of Applicant regarding the specific:facts surrounding the probation; violations,
Applicant cven admitted to failing a drug test. Based on the evidence presented, this Court finds
Applicant was in fact in violation of the terms of his probation for each one of the nine enumerated
violations and the revocation Was proper. As such, this Court fails to seehow an attorney could have
assisted Applicant in receiving a different outcome from the probation revocation hearing,
Therefore, this court finds that the allegation of denial of probation revocation counse! is without
merit and it is denied and dismissed.
| CONCLUSION

Based on all the foregoing, this Court finds and concludes Applicazﬁhas notestablished any
violations that would require this Court to grant his application. Therefore, as Applicant has failed 1o
meet his burden of proofin this post-conviction relief action, his application is denied and dismissed
with prejudice,

This Court notifies Applicant be must file and serve a notice of appeal within thirty (30) days
from receipt by counsel of written notice of entry of judgment to secure the appropriate appellate
review.-See Rule 203, SCACR. An applicant has a right to an appellate counsel’s assistance whén
they aré secking review of the denial of PCR._ Austin v. State, 305 8.C. 453 (1991). Ifan applicant
wishes to seek appellate review, PCR counsel must serve and file a Notice of Appeal on the
Applicant’s behalf. See Rule 71.1 {g), SCRCP. You must look at Rule 243 of the South Carolina

Appellate Court Rules for appropriate procedures for appeal.

[Cornitinued to next page]
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{T IS THEREFORE ORDERED T! HAT:
1. The application for Post-Conviction Relief is denied and dismissed with
prejudice;

2 Appticant shall remain in the custody of the South Carolina Department
of Corrections to complete service of his sefitence.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED this é‘d

, 2018.

) Presiding Judge ‘
Seventh.J udicial Circuit
N , South Carolina
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) THE CC
COUN! YOF SPARTANBURG } -~ FOR THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT .
Jamie Makupson, SCDC # 281398 ) " Case No. 2017-CP-42-1808
Applicam, )
Y RETURN ’l‘O APPLICANT'S MOTION
v. ¥y TO ALTER OR AMEND JUDGMENT
)
State of South Carolina, )
—_— Respondem. )
] = ?:’ L

Respondent, by and throagh underszgned -counsel, makmg its Retim m@l\pgcan&fs»

o-.. AN
g 1
t-

}
(HH

0

fl

this Court: 5 : , _ F B as
) 5 gm___ cedural Bistogy_ , -
Jamie Makupson (Applxcant) is presently confined in the Soiith Carolina Department of

§S
L

Corrections pursuant to orders of commument of the Spartanburg County C!erk of Court In May

2013 the Spananburg County Grand Jury mdxc!ed Apphcant for assault and battery, ﬁrst degree
(2013-68-42-2321) Apphcant was subsequentty indicted in Iune 2013 for assault and batlery,

| second. degree (2013~GS-42-2919) and. threat _mg life, person, or faxmly of pubhc official,

teacher, or pnnctpal (2013-08-42-2920) o
Robert B Hall, Esquxxe, represemed .'Applxcant. Alexaudna Demse Lyles, Esquire,

prosecuted the case On Jiine 28 2013, Appl nt pleaded gmlty as mdlcted to all charges before
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ien,

person or family of public.official, teacher, or principal. Applicant did not appeal Bis conviction

or sentence.

On April 13, 2016, a probation ci__tati_bn was issued. for Applica_ﬁt for violations of

probation. The aﬁ‘xdavit stated that Applicam was to be afrested ffér the_foﬂburin_g‘ 1easons:

W3 B e

L

9,

Failure to refrain from the use-of cor;_tmlled substances havmg tested positiy

Faihure to repon s instructed having ! xmssed an office vxsxt, ‘
Failure to-refrain fmm changing residence without prior consent of the Agent,-;_- :

cocaine; and opiates on 3/8/16 and 3/15/16;

- Failure to work diligently at a lawful. occupaﬁon, having never provnded !he Agent w:th

proofof employment, or proof of any effort 1 obtain employment,

- Failure to pay supervision fee being 3600 in arrears and havmg never made 2 payment on

this account since beginning probanon,
Failure to pay. coust fine being $180 in arrears and havmg never made a paymcnt on this
aceount since begmnmg probation;. -

Failure to pay one time $20 drug test fee;

Failure to follow the advice and instriictions of the supervising Agent;
Failure to comply thh speoial candm n'of anger manggement counselmg

On June 17 2016, Apphcam appeared before the Honorable R, Keith Kelly for ﬁm@t

revocauon hearmg. Judge Kelly revoked Applwant s probation and rcqmred lnmdg se:ve

evxdenna:y hearmg into- the matter was convened on Pebruary 22, 2018 at the Spartanburg

County.. Courthouse~before the Honorable Mnchael G. Nettles. vApplxcap_t was. prg:se,nt ‘at th_e

heating: and represcmed by Susannah ‘Ross, Esquxre. Asgistant Aﬁomey General Valene_.
vaanol: af 1he South Carolina Attomey General's Office, represented Respondent Apphcant :

testxﬁed on. his. own behalf at the evxdcntxary heanng and the State p:eseuted testxmony fmm' .

_P.robgnor_x Agem Hanna Price,

Page2 of 4

for THC s

=84

129




- reqmred by s C Ccde Amn, § 17-27-30 and Rule sz<a), SCRCP;

By wutten order sxgned March. 20 20!8 and filed. Mateh 26 2018 Judge Nettles demed

and dismissed. the ap t:on thh pre;udxce On Aprll 4, 2018 Apphcant ﬁled a, “Meuon to |

Alter or Amend the Judgment.” 'lhzsRetum folluws. o
- L Applicants Mation fo Alter or é'm' d
‘In hxs motmn to altet or amend Apphcant argues thxs Court should reverse 1ts prxor A,

rulings and grant past-convmnon selie 1ﬁcally, Appheant argues he was not pmperly

advised of his nght to. counsel and urges ths coust to reverse xt pnor mlmg to the conttary In
sum, Applicant requests the Coun reverse 1t prior rulings and grant him post-cnnvxctxon relief ,,
based on- argumen(s that Were already pmperly presented and denied- by the Court in-;ts ﬁer :of

dismissal.

see also

to the Courf’s ‘oxder, but rather Apphcan ng the Court to reverse 1ts deexsxon Such a

request is more properly addressed through the appellate proccss __e_e W:Ider Cor_n Y. ﬂ gg,

330 8.CG7 l 77 S E 2d 731 734 (199 ) (notmg the proper use: of a Rnle 59(e) mouon is to
preserve issues ra1 ed to bm not ruled upon- by, the mal eoun)

Respondent submxts ‘this Court’s rulmg aré lega]ly correet and suppnrted by the zecord,

andthatthls

' ‘nld deny Apphcant‘s request to xecomder, altex or amend xts rulmg.
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_ IV Relief Reguestcd
WHEREFORE. havmg made its Retum to the mohon, »

:equested in the monon be: demed and that saxd monon be d:smxssed
: Respectfully submmed,

ALAN WILSON
Attomney Genera!

w.J EFFREY YOUNG o
Chief Deputy Attomey General

N MEGAN HARR.IGAN JAMESON

BY:

Columbxa, Sonth Carolma. 29211
(803) 734-3737 G

May {le .zo},s‘-.
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STATE OF SOUTH.CAROLINA )  INTHE COURT OF COMMO
COUNTY OF SPAR'I‘ANBURG ) B B MMON FLEAS
. ) :
o ) 2017-CP-42-1808
JAMIE MAKUPSON, )
§.C.D.C. No. 281398, 9
Applicant, ;
o ) AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
_ : )
Respondent. »
. ‘. . " )

1. Iaman emplbyee of ﬁle prondent in the above-captioned action.

2, Repular communication by mail exxs:s throughout the State of South Caroling and that this

: xs & proper cxrcmnstance of servxce by mall

3}.»- : I have. th:s day served a copy of the. Retum to Applicant's Motion to Alter or Amend
Judgment inthe: abave-capnongd matter on lhe followmg person by deposmng sameinthe Umted

: Statcs mail; ] postage prepaid:

Snsnnnah C. Ross, Esqulre
rlin

i

DATED this the 16™ day of May, 2018.

Lmdsey McCoy, Lengxstant
i For Respondent
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ] \§
FOR THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG

Jamie Makupson, SCDC # 281398, Case No. 2017-CP-42-1308

Applicant,
v. MOTION TO ALTER OR AMEND
_ : JUDGMENT
State of South Carolina,
Respondent.

)

)

)

;.

) ORDER DENYING APPLICANT’S
)

)

)

)

)

This ‘matter comes before the Court by way of Applicant’-s “Motion to Alter or Amend
the Judgement.” Respondent. made  its Return to this motion requesting it be denied and
éiismissed,
| This' Court’s Order- of Dismissal denying and dismissing Applicaﬁt’s pos_i-cpnvictibn
relief application was ‘ﬁled on March 26, 2018, Based upon careful ‘rjeco‘nsideratioﬁ' of all the
evidence in this case and upon full consideration of Applicaﬁt’s motion and Respondent's réturn,
this Court is not persuaded to alter or amend the judgment. This Court further finds that otal
argument w.duld n__o,tnaid in the reconsideration of the origihal judgment. Therefore, this Court

finds that the original Order of Dismissal shall stand as it was written.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED this__3_day of _ % 7/ 2018,

257
Michdel G. Nettl

es

, Presiding Judge x = ‘é
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“State of South Carolina

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA | IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG Indictment No. -GS .- ]

Probation/Community Supervision Progeatn
Violation

Warrent/Citation #__ - -~ .

V.. " N ' : -
W1y i \ \ k/ o an X NOTICE OF_PROBA_TION/CSP
ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF NOTICE
You are Her b)i, directed to appear at & Probation/CSP Violation Hearing in General Seéssions Court on
{ ij | 7? t;’_) ___at 8:30amin the Spartanburg County Cowthouse, Spartanburg, South
Carolina,

You may have an attorney at your oxpenserepresent you at this. hearing: Ifyou cannot afford an-attorney
and you desire the représentation of the Spartanburg County Public Defender, you must apply for an
appointed attorney withi that office, If you choose to appear at the hearing without an attorney, you may
be requirad to représent yourself. You are hereby advised these are dangoers and disadvantages to selft
representation, An attorney may better understand couriroom procedure and may be better able to think of
and present defenses to your violations, By appearing without an aftorney, you are acknowledging these

dangers but are knowingly and voluntarjly choosing to proceed without coutisel, _

At the violation hearing you will have the opportunity to speak, and You may present witnesses or
documentary evidetice on your behalf, If requested, you will also have the opportunity to confront and.
cross~cxamine any witnesseés called fo testify against you, however, the Department may elect to present
affidavits of witnosses or police officers in lieu of testimonty. State v, Pauling (Ct. App. 2006), It is your
responsibility to have your witnesses and attorney present. If you are released on bond prior to your
hearing date, you must report to the Probation Offica immediately upon yourrelease, :

You are required to be at the hearing as scheduled above. If you do not appear, 2 bench warrant or failure
to appear warrant will be issued for your arrest, Furthermore, the Court may chooss to proceed with the
hearing in your absence, This dircctive remains in efféct until yoy are granted leave by the Court.

ith 8 copy. 1 was also given an oppotiunity

Date: Af

1%,] 1L

Report to Agcnt-j?L \ k(ﬁ

Immediately upon your release
Phone Nuraber (864) 596-2582

Fonm 1364 {Tamplate} 6/26/2007

Agent’s Qighature
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SCHPRPS CaseNoi__ -GS- . -
Form 26,1
NOTICE OF RIGHTS
A Statement of the Rights of the Accused /

You have been charged with a Violation of Probistion/CSP and referred to General Sessions Court:
You are advised:
You have the right to employ counsel to represent you.

-In the event you are financially unable to employ counsel, the State-will provide you with counsel by the-
appointment or with the services of the Public Defender of Spartanburg County. Tf you desite the State to
provide you with counsel, you must apply for counsel. 1t is your responsibility to contact the Spartanburg
County Public Defender's Office if you so desire their services, and you should coatact their office within
48 hours of receiving this notice. The address and telephone number are listed below, Your failure.to
either contact the Pulblic Defender’s Office of employ counsel prior o your hearlng date will not serve as
a basis'to continue your hearing and could result in your bond being revoked, resulting in your:
incarceration. Tn addition, the Court could determine that by your failing to apply for counsel, you have
waived your right to an attornoy and progeed with the Violation of Probation/CSP hearing.

This form I;as been read to the acc“?,eg’f;”i ,&Y\Jr\a\.g;. A CL{.,@‘-:LP(LQ&. -, in-"kmy' presence at
7 Z '3L) gi;;‘i pm this [ h day of C}&Emi}t , ,_?0 I L 0

SPARTANBURG COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER’S OFFICE
366 N, CHURCH STREET, SUITE 3000, SPARTANBURG, SC 20303
(864) 596-2561

WAIVER OF RIGHT TO HAVE APPOINTED COUNSEL OR SERVICES OF PUBLIC DEFENDER

The undersigned certifies that hie/she has been informed of the charges against him/her and the naturé
thereof, and that he/she is unable to employ counsel, Howevet, the undersigned now stated that he/she.
does not af this time desire fo apply for the appointinent of counset or for the services of the. Public-
Dolender, and expressly waives his/her desire to services of counsel provided by the State at this time,
which hefshe understands he/she has a right to.

Execuled before me on this day of s

Defendant Apgent




n Carpling b1 rovation, Farete an2 Pardon Servic
Swrviard Coniers ot Prozation " it

STATE OF SQUTH CAROUINA
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ‘ IN THE GOURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
D13 e - 333(
STATE ) Count
V8-

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION

Jai

1. } shall report in person tothe South Carofina Depariment of Probation; Parole and Pardon Services' offics on the day of my seniencing or release,

and as‘instructed by the Depariment; and | shall make compiete and truthful reports to the Agent.

3 - - -
I shall ot change my residence or employment withdut the consent of ry Agent. Further, 1 shall aflow my Agent to visit me In my home, at my

2
place of employment, or elsewherg, at any time. .

a I shall not use controlled substances, except when property prescribad by a ficansed physician, nor cansume alcoholic beverages 10'exgess, nor
enter establishments whose primary business Is the sale and drinking of alcoholic beverages. Furiher, ! shall submit to a urinalysis, blood test
or provide forensic evidence when instructed by Agents of the Department, and | 2greg that any of tfiese test results may be used as evideace
In any heesing for the viclation of the cunditions of my supervision; »

4. {ishall not possess or purchase any firearms or other dangeraus weapans, and | shall not associate with any person who has a criminal record,

ar any cther persan whom my Agent has instructed e to 2void. .
5. 1 shall work diligently at a lawiful cccupation. Further, | shall néﬁfy my Agent if [ become i-uh‘emp!oyed..

t shall not violate any Federal, State, or Local Law, and | shall immegliately confact my Agent if | am ever arrested or questioned by a law
enforcement official far any reason whalsoever, . ]
7. { shall pay a supervision fee and any other fees as dstermined by thé Deparyment.

ission from my Agent. Further, if | am ever arrested in another state for viclating meée conditions, { hereby

8. | shall nat leave the State without perm ! , _
irrevocahly waive &ll extradition rights | may otherwise have been entitied to arid agree 1o return to South Carclina.whean directed by my Agent,
the Court or by & warrant, :

9. 1 shall obey all conditions of supervision set forth In this order including the payment of fines, restitution os, cther payments; and the service of
any period of incarceration.

10.  Ishall follow the advice and _i;':stmctiqus of my Agent and | agree to comply with any further conditions Imposed by the Department arits Agenlts.

11 lagn
of the Depanment. {20% collection fee chiarged) . , - :

12.  Unless | was convicted.of or pled guilty or nolo contendere to a Class C misdemeanor or an unciassified misdemeanor that cafres & ternt of
impriseniment of gt more than one year, I shall be subject to a search dr seizure, without a search wariant, based on reasonable saspicians,

and any of my possessions by: {1} any grabation agent empiﬁged by the Depanment,; or (2)

reetc payrestiution and a statutory dollection fee payable to the Department of Probation, Parole, and Pardon Services a_s&firacted by Agents:

‘'of my persan, any vehicle I'own or am driving,
any other law enforceinent officer,
{hereby certify that the Candiions abiove have been explained.

F hereby certify {hat this statement of Conditions has been read and explained to gertify't
the Probationer listed above and he/she has.agreed ta them. . fully to me-and in agreement therato, | attach my signature:
Tris &6 day of )LUM - . N 2013 A h~“_’\’~ﬁ~ Am{\\éuﬁ< p0
. . v
180 Library Street, Spartanburg , 8,C, 29306 . ﬁ ? A )‘*A EL - 5 . (_ . :lé‘( 30 ¥
' AgenisAddress . s 7 Difender's Address .
Agent's Phione Number

{ understand that | must REPORT NOW to the Probation Office or{{

understand | need to bring $50 far my 1% month Supervision Fee.
X%q' oy AN ;,Lgp pr

Form 1239 {Template} G7/01/2010 . )
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Form 162 . lndic__tmentNumber:
gg%{:?hperg‘&en'eﬁi o ' 13-G5-42-02321
May 1958 . PROBATION CITATION
" No. G-42-16-0177
'SOUTH CAROLINA COUNTY: SPARTANBURG
V.
SCOC# XY
JAMIE ANTHONY MAKUPSON 481398 41061614

[ 70: JAMIE ANTHONY MAKUPSON

VOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED to appear in the above nared case at the time, date and place specified

below.
Place Room 8D
TED Dateand Time

as stated below.

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that you are charged with violating the conditions of yodr sﬁpén)ision '

Violations Charged

Spartanburg County Court of General Sessions.

Violation of probation sections 1, 2, 3, 5,7, 9, 10:and special conditions as ordered under cause number 13-G5-42-02321 by the

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that you have the rights listed Below.

Listof Rights:

You have fhe right at the hearing to question any person whoappears as a witness against you and to have witnesses appear
on your behalf. You may present evidence on your behalf. You may have an attomey represent you. if you cannct afford-an '
attorney, an attorney will be appointed for you, You must advise the agent or the court in wiiting of your desire for an
attorney. It is your responsibility to make arrangements for your witnesses and your attorney to appear at the hearing.

F VOU FAIL TO APPEAR AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN
‘WiLL BE HELD IN YOUR ABSENCE AND YOU MAY BE INCARCERATED.

ABOVE, THE HEARING

SPARTANBURG , South Carolina

N\

Probation and Barglé 4 Agent #

Date 4/4/2016

Hanna Price/ 1013

the time, date, and place indicated below,

A copy of the citation was served by the undersigned‘ and given Wih

:vidué_lina'rhed therem at

Place

Date and Time

Serving Offi 9fHSiIQ§;t{ge I 1 . 30 am .

Sworn t
Yo 2 fne

nd subscribed before rpe this _J&._ day of A?x‘ﬂ

Signature of Notary‘ﬂi?ublic

My Commission Expires. ]Q/ 9:2/25’
SN

orm 162 {Tempiate)

Page1d 3
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
'AFFIDAVIT

County of SPARTANBURG : i

Personally appeared before me; Hanna Price, who first being _dui'y sworm, deposes and séys that JAMIE ANTHONY
MAKUPSON did within this county-and State on the 4 day of April, 2016, violate certain conditions of release in
the following particulars:

DESCRIPTION OF VIOLATION

Violation of probation sections 1,2, 3, 5,7, 9, 10 and special conditions as ordered under cause number 13-GS-42-02321 by the
Spartanburg County Court of General Sessions.

The Affiant states that there is probable cause to believe the. defendant named committed the
violations set forth and that such probable cause Is based on the following facts:
Pailure to report as instructed having missed an office wvisit on 12/1/15.
Failure to refrain from c¢hanging residence without prior consent of the Agent. On 4/30/2045,
the Agent was informed by the homeownér, that the offender did not reside at um Bl S
as he reported, but just uses it for mailing purposes. The Agent did hot know the offender’s
‘true location or address at that time, and the offender is considered to have absconded

supervigion. The offender did not Inform the Agent until pressed at his next office visit on |
5/20/2015 where his actual residence was. ’ - )

Failure to refrain from the use of controlled substances having tested positive for THC,
Cocaine and Opiates on 3/8/16 and 3/15/16. . - o : .
Pailure to work diligently at a lawful-occupation, having never provided the Agent with proof '
of employment, or proof of :any effoxt to. obtain employment. ' :

N

S\&orn to and subscri be‘d
hefore me this 4 day of
April , 2016

/ u Affiant

Signature o 'otary UDAIC

My Comrmission Expires: / 2 / b, ;L/ .2%——
7 1

%o 16.2 (Tewpiate) Page 204




Addendum

Failure to pay supervision fee being $600 in arrears and having never made a paymerit on this account since
beginning gprobation op 03/16/15. 3

Pailure to pay court fine being $180 in arrears and having never made a payment on this account since beginning
probation on 03/16/15. R

Failure to pay one time $20 drug test fee. .

Pailure to follow the advice and instructions of the supervising Adedt.

Failure to comply with special condition of Angexr Management Counseéling. The cffender has been referxed on
3/23715, 7/28/15, 18/6/15 and 1/12/16 and bas failad to show up for any classes to date.

Swom to and Subscribed before me
this 4 day of April, 20186,

(%
" ‘signature of Notan/B
' Jy%&tgﬁg égptsres

“omm 16 2 {Tanplate} ) PageBof 3




o " WITNESSES °°°f§-Gs,42¢;23 2/
The State of South Carolina
Countﬁ of Spartanburg

— Barry J. Barnette, Solicitor
T w {NDEXED

3 TRECKED WARRANTS | A . . . "">.. 9 5.
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ACTION OF GRAND JURY %

Jamie Anthony Makupson

o )
o e
S a

True Bill

A

N WY 03 0 o | T 3
e e e TS, e e e PP .:_, N
VERDICT Intficunent for R
ASSAULT AND BATTERY 1% Degree
o SC Code: 16~3-«600(C)(1)
<+ CDR Code: 3412
- Class FEUE

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date: ‘




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT
) '
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) \ _
MAY 83 2013
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on ‘ . the

Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath:

ASSAULT AND BATTERY 1* Degree

That the Defendant, Jamie Makupson, did in Spértanburg County on or about March
11, 2012, commit an assault and battery on the victim, Titania Stephens, by unlawfully,
(a) Injuring the victim, and the act: |
0] involved nonconsensual touching. of the private parts of an adult, either
“under or above clothing, with lewd and lascivious intent; or
(i) . occurred during the commission of a robbery; -b‘urglary, kidnapping, or
thefl; or

(b) did offer or attempt to injure the victim with the present ability to do so, and the-

act:

0] wés accomplished by means likely to produce death or great bodily injury,

or

141

(i)  occurred during the commission of a robbery, burglary, kidnapping, ovr‘

theft.
To wit: by striking her about the body with his fists in violation of §16-3-600(C)(1), THE
CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, (1976), as amended. '

~ Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case

made and provided.
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smr's: qagmm CAROLINA ' ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
LOUNTY OF SPARTANBURG

STATE V8. ﬂ A{Q" INDICTMENT/CASE#: 20 I3GS4202321
, Jamie Anthony Makupso™ ﬂ,m awE e C‘+ W,

AKA" _ — J Date of Offense: _3/) 172012

Race: B : Sex: M .. Age: 3 ) S.C.Code ~ § :_16-03-0600 (C)(2)

Dos: " CDR Code #: __3412

Address: v
City,State, Z1p:

DLY; SENTENCE SHEET

*CUL Yes[} NoD cMV Yes [_'] No[} Hazmat Yes[:} No[] .
Indisposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant whowas {) CONVICTED OF or [XIPLEADS

TO: Assaultl Assault & Battery 1st degrce {up to 10 years)

inviolationof  § 16-03-0600 {C)(2) . ofthe 5.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 3412 _

Xi NON-VIOLENT [} VIOLENT [JSERIOUS (IMOST SERIOUS [TIMandatory GPS{CSC [3817-2545

' w/minor 1st or Lewd Act) ‘

The charge is: [X}AsIndicted, [T]Lesser included Offense, DDefcndant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. {defendant’s initials)

Theplenis/y [ ] Without Negotiations or Recommcndati_ n, egouated Sen Recommendation by the State.

C Bar; Defenda t Artumey‘for Defendant SC Bar?

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the State Department of Corrections, 1] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of u} days/mo. g ' {1 under the Youthful Offender Act notto ex __years
andfor fo pay a fine of § ' - ; providad-tiiat upon the service of S déys/mont u@ d/or payment

of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with prebation for . o S
mong\i, Sfyears, :‘? subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Parddn Services standard conditions of
probattoi, which are incorporated by reference. _

CONCURRnNT or [[] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: ]
4. The Defendant is to be given credit fol gae se%pursuam 1o S.C. Code § 24-13-40 1o be caleulated-and applied

y the State Department-of Corrections,
{] The Defendant is to be placed on the entral Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to. 8.C.Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant te 18 U.5.C Section 922,it is anlawful for a persen convieted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to smp,transport,pnssess,or receive a firearm or ammunition,

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
_IRESTITUTION: [ Defecred [ ] Def. Waives Hearing [Nordered  pTUP ) .
Toal: 8 ___ Dlus20% fee: $ - daysfhours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: _—__ CbuinGED (] o
[} Set by SCDPPPS — : — . Attend Voc, Rehab. or Job Corp
_ : May serve W/E begiring
Recipient: : Substance Abuse Couriseling O
*Fine: 3 Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0
§ 14-1-206 (Assessmients 107.5 %) 3 +—ey...  Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(AX1) (Conv. Surcbarge) B 311 4] 3/ m pmts. of § beginning
§ 13121 1AX2) (DUt Suicharge) $100 3 .
| § 56-5-2995 (DUL Assessment) $12 5 $ paid to Pubhc‘ Defenfier F;md’
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 § » Othery o L2 Ul U’ N
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) 8500  $ HOO . O : .. '
§ 141212 {Law Enforce. Funding) $2s 75 Oy dU) 2 N o [ N2 ot
_ § 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) 5150 T3 ’ | ALY/ v 41
§ 50-21-1§4(BUI Brezath Test Fee) $5¢ 3 o i 3 W ‘
§ §6-5-2942(1) {Vehicle Assessment) S40/ea 3 A -~ 3 "Ap ted PD or appoijits
Proviso 90:5 (SCCIA Surcharge) $5 $ —~ 01 847 f) requires S504 by
3%to County  (if paid in instaliments) s during probation.
TOTAL S {pARX.

Presiding Judg . '
Judge Code: &I ./ R
Sentence Date: /

;E

Clerk of Court/ Dcp;@t
Court Reporter:

SCCA217 (083/2011)




. County of )
'STATE

Q{\ il A*rﬂ I’llmLI |

Name ef Ongmal Oﬂ’ense :
Original A TLL ¢ F A/ mzm"
Date of Original Offense: 3/ J12.

- Convicuon §.C. Code§ :
COnwction CDR Code # .

SO RN N .Z‘QRD.ER-'*%'
' violeﬁngmeeond:ﬁonsefprohaﬁen ordered on _
4 ounty; andlorthe eddiﬂonal oondmonsord

Thetefcre, ITis onnsneo that' R
7" the suspanded sentence be revoked and the abnve nan;ed defortant b oqued o srve _LQ_mon e
A " ofmeongmalsentanee.andlorpays . ) e EER j‘
o ~'the suspended sentence be revoked and the above named defendant be requued lo serve " monﬂ!slyears of the ongmal
- " sentence and/or pay $-- .ihereupontobe reinstatedonprobam subjedtotheeondmonssetfonhlnﬂ\eattached
order and not inconsistent with this order S o -

o’ the above named defendant is eonﬁnued en probalion as provided for in the original senlence. subject to the conditions set forth

. lhereinandnot ineonsnstentwnm this order S i N 8 - o~
. ’ =8 'n
.w D _pmbadon is radueed to ume served under supemelon and the defendant is d!seharged frem supemsum ggth@te

i -i

«;,, ‘0O the above named defendant is p!awd on active electronic monitoring pursusn to §23-3-540 (mandatory Hmnﬁed e!:ﬁj'éi—dpgxee J
~ cfiminal. sexual eondudwuh a mlner or ewd' act. dlserehona:y if oonvlc&ed of any other applicable sex offmse agnins@&npnr) SRR :

LK Finangial Obligations:- Ordersahsﬁes

‘tﬁ Addit;‘onei'condiﬁonseljdemdfbymemun. - o 2 |
' lerwuw.fe NMLGI\) 5

‘b The defendant is- glvem credit, for pre-revoeaﬂen heanng detentlon time on current prohauon Vtolanon tobe calculawd and applied
by the 8C Depanment of Corrections..

){ The defendant has prewousiy sawed

{split sontence time andlerp
D. The defendant was 'rawa
k day of NNy

J/!.lu( 7

N Yois ars: hereby adviged that under the faw t @ ay al ary dme;evm o medﬁy any eendiﬂen of this probetien I.mpose any lawlul copdiions & deems pmper or emnd your.
. ,_f d-of probatl noHo : ‘ﬁvc(S)ye yheuhhlnﬂmyedoddynmnmb-m lhacoun.maymulmyoumnw - R LT | .

. Thts 18 10 centity that lhava mad, or have had read 10 mo, the ordar and the conditlons set out thereln. 1agrae to gomyly with such conditions and the condiians of-my aliachad
. prabalion ordor di @ po ava recajved & copy of this l:eurt'a otde( and ail atiaghy Ehts,

Offender's Signature

Signedthis

" Day’

DPPPS Form 0 Stack)  Revision: D Revision Dela 08832604~/ Cons Diatbulans: Whitn.Llark nl Court: Yaliow-SCBE: Pink-Offandsr S1s; Gold-Oftpndae .~ -




